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P.G. Police Raid Mayor’s Home
SWAT Team Shoots Dogs First

 FDA Enforces China Style Censorship at Home

GOP Cyber-Security Expert Confirms: Diebold 
Rigged 2002 Elections in Georgia

High Ranking
Al Qaeda Leader   

Never Existed
FBI Sweeps Anthrax Under the Rug

White House Ordered CIA To Fabricate Evidence9/11 : Seven Years Later
Are We Any Closer to the Truth?

BY KATHLEEN PARKER
Just when you thought the war in Iraq couldn’t 
get any stranger, a high-ranking al Qaeda figure 
who was first captured and then killed — his 
body displayed on state-run TV — turns out to 
have been a fiction.

He didn’t exist.
The apparently invented character called 

Abu Omar al-Baghdadi was known as the head 
of the Islamic State of Iraq — believed to be a 
front group for al Qaeda.

He wasn’t captured, as was reported 
previously. He wasn’t killed May 1 by hostile 
fire from US forces, as reported in a May 3 
New York Times story. He wasn’t even real, 
according to the US military.

All this we learn from a leading al Qaeda 
figure captured July 4 by US forces in Mosul. 
Khalid Abdul-Fattah Dawoud Mahmoud al-
Mashhadani, who in the interest of economy 

Space-suited workers decontaminate Senate offices after 2001 anthrax attack.

BY MATT SULLIVAN / RCFP
A Pulitzer Prize winning author has alleged 
that the White House ordered the CIA to forge 
fake documents to support administration 
claims of ties between former Iraqi President 
Saddam Hussein and the al Qaeda network.  
Among other revelations, author Ron Suskind 
writes that the falsified letter was intended to 
help justify the US invasion of Iraq .

The forgery consisted of a letter, created in 
2003 but back-dated to July 1, 2001 and signed 
by Tahir Jalil Habbush, the head of Iraqi 
Intelligence, who was cooperating with the 
British and US Intelligence at the time.  The 
letter pretended to be a report from Habbush 
to Saddam Hussein about a visit to Bagdad 

by Mohamad Atta, the supposed ring-leader 
of the 9/11 hijackers.  The letter also claimed, 
and here they may have gone too far, that 
Hussein had accepted a shipment from Niger, 
an apparent reference to the alleged uranium 
acquisition attempt that was cited by Bush in 
his January 2003 State of the Union address: 
“The British government has learned that 
Saddam Hussein recently sought significant 
quantities of uranium from Africa.”

Habbush had reported to British and US 
Intelligence in January of 2003, that “there 
were no arms of mass destruction in Iraq,” 
three months before the invasion.  In return 
for his cooperation, Habbush was granted safe 
passage to Jordan and paid 5 million dollars.

The forged letter was passed in Baghdad to 
a reporter for The (London) Sunday Telegraph 
(a Conrad Black publication) who wrote about 
it on the front page December 14, 2003, under 
the headline, “Terrorist behind September 11 
strike ‘was trained by Saddam.’”  “Over the 
next few days, the Habbush letter continued 
to be featured prominently in the United States 
and across the globe,” Suskind writes. “Fox’s 
Bill O’Reilly trumpeted the story Sunday night 
on ‘The O’Reilly Factor,’ talking breathlessly 
about details of the story and exhorting, ‘Now, 
if this is true, that blows the lid off al Qaeda—
Saddam.’”

This forging of evidence is not an isolated 

BY MIKE ADAMS / NATURALNEWS
The US media is loudly protesting the 
censorship of their reporters at the Olympics 
in Beijing. Betraying its promise to the 
International Olympic Committee (IOC), China 
has blocked reporters’ access to “sensitive” 
websites, including those that mention human 
rights violations, the suppression of the Falun 
Gong religious group, the Tiananman Square 
uprising and other similar topics the Chinese 
government would like to imagine never 
happened. In response to these restrictions, US 
reporters are crying foul, insisting that they 
should have full access to information without 
government censorship. By implication, they 
are also stating that the US is a “free society” 

where information is never censored by the 
government.

Perhaps these reporters have never actually 
opened their eyes in their own country. While 
China’s censorship of news websites is 
deplorable, the US is engaged in a far more 
restrictive, freedom-crush brand of censorship 
in the health industry: the censorship of 
truthful descriptions of health products by the 
US Food and Drug Administration (FDA).

Like China’s government at the Olympics, 
the FDA has outlawed free speech by 
nutritional supplement companies, threatening 
them with fines, business interruptions and 
even jail time for their founders if they 
don’t remove all text from their websites 

and product packaging that seeks to inform 
consumers about the genuine health benefits 
provided by their products.

FDA’s Campaign of Intimidation 

For example, last year the FDA sent 
threatening letters to 29 growers of cherries, 
warning that they could not place links on 
their websites linking to scientific studies 
documenting the health benefits of cherries. 
Allowing consumers to be informed of the 
scientific truth about cherries, it seems, was 
simply intolerable to the FDA. Any company 
that linked to a scientific, peer-reviewed 
study showing cherries to be natural anti-

BY LARISA ALEXANDROVNA AND MURIEL 
KANE / RAWSTORY
A leading cyber-security expert and former 
adviser to Sen. John McCain (R-AZ) says he 
has fresh evidence regarding election fraud 
on Diebold electronic voting machines during 
the 2002 Georgia gubernatorial and senatorial 
elections.

Stephen Spoonamore is the founder and 
until recently the CEO of Cybrinth LLC, an 
information technology policy and security 
firm that serves Fortune 100 companies. At a 
little noticed press conference in Columbus, 
Ohio in July, he discussed his investigation of 
a computer patch that was applied to Diebold 
Election Systems voting machines in Georgia 
right before that state’s November 2002 
election.

Spoonamore is one of the most prominent 
cyber-security experts in the country. He has 
appeared on CNN’s “Lou Dobbs” and ABC’s 
“World News Tonight”, and has security 
clearances from his work with the intelligence 
community and other government agencies, as 
well as the Department of Defense, and is one 
of the world’s leading authorities on hacking 
and cyber-espionage.

In 1995, Spoonamore received a civilian 
citation for his work with the Department 
of Defense. He was again recognized for his 
contributions in 2004 by the Department of 
Homeland Security. Spoonamore is also a 
registered Republican and until recently was 
advising the McCain campaign.

Spoonamore received the Diebold patch 
from a whistleblower close to the office 

of Cathy Cox, Georgia’s then-Secretary of 
State. In discussions with RAW STORY, 
the whistleblower — who wishes to remain 
anonymous for fear of retaliation — said that 
he became suspicious of Diebold’s actions in 
Georgia for two reasons. The first red flag went 
up when the computer patch was installed in 
person by Diebold CEO Bob Urosevich, who 
flew in from Texas and applied it in just two 
counties, DeKalb and Fulton, both Democratic 
strongholds. The source states that Cox was 
not privy to these changes until after the 
election and that she became particularly 
concerned over the patch being installed in 
just those two counties.

The whistleblower said another flag went 
up when it became apparent that the patch 

BY LYDIA RILEY / RCFP
Seven years later and still we have no 
investigation and no answers to one of the most 
horrific crimes to take place on American soil.  
Even Thomas Kean and Lee Hamilton, Co-
Chairs of the 9/11 Commission, have publicly 
admitted that the 9/11 Commission was never 
meant to produce any evidence or find any 
answers.  “Recent revelations that the CIA 
destroyed videotaped interrogations of Qaeda 
operatives leads us to conclude that the agency 
failed to respond to our lawful requests for 
information about the 9/11 plot....We call that 
obstruction.”1

In their book, Without Precedent:  The 
Inside Story of the 9/11 Commission, Kean and 
Hamilton state:  “All of the after-action reports, 

accident investigations, and public testimony 
by FAA and NORAD officials advanced an 
account of 9/11 that was untrue.”2

During an interview by Canadian 
Broadcasting Corporation in August 2006 
Hamilton said; “All of us had our suspicions 
here, but we simply did not have the staff and 
we were right up against the deadline when this 
[false testimony by FAA and NORAD] came 
out, that we didn’t have the time to say that 
these officials had willfully and intentionally 
lied....They did mislead us.  Was it willful? We 
don’t know.”3

“We were set up to fail...they were afraid we 
were going to hang somebody.”4

The events of 9/11 are forever seared into our 
collective psyche.  We have all been affected by 

BY WENDY S. PAINTING  / RCFP
What may seem like conspiracy theories 

surrounding the April 19, 1995 bombing of 
the Murrah Federal Building in Oklahoma 
City, have been given more credibility due 
to newly released internal defense memos for 
Timothy James McVeigh, who was convicted 
and executed for his role as “Mastermind” and 
“Lone Wolf Bomber.”  McVeigh, who was 
said to have orchestrated the bombing with 
minimal help from two Army buddies, may 
not have been what he seemed. 

A source out of Austin, Texas memorialized 
in the documents gives weight to previous 
evidence and supports the existence of a 
real life conspiracy theory.  The source, who 

because of privacy concerns, will, within 
this article, be referred to simply as “D.”  D 
was known to have had heavy ties to US 
intelligence agencies as well as groups targeted 
for Federal investigation and infiltration, 
such as White Supremacists, Neo-Nazis and 
Militia members. On March 9, 1996, D gave 
a statement to McVeigh’s defense team, laying 
out several shocking details which have now, 
thirteen years later, been corroborated by other 
sources. 

Immediately after the bombing many 
journalists put forth the story that McVeigh 
had flunked out of Special Forces. This is one 
reason often cited for his intense anger at the 
government, which they say, caused him to 

wage war on ordinary American citizens.  D 
told the defense that Timothy McVeigh was 
working for the Federal government and was 
assigned to infiltrate the neo-Nazi Skinhead 
movement, yet D’s claims that McVeigh was 
working for the government are not made by 
him alone, and are supported by other internal 
defense memos and various other credible 
sources. 

Another supporting memo shows that in 
1991, when McVeigh applied to work for a 
well known security company in Buffalo, New 
York, he had advised his soon to be employers 
that he held DoD Secret Clearance. McVeigh’s 
military records also reflect on the fact that he 

A Guilty Agent: The Shadowy Role of Timothy McVeigh

BY ELAINE SULLIVAN / RCFP
“When the shooting stopped, two dogs lay dead. 
A mayor sat in his boxers, hands bound behind 
his back.  His handcuffed mother-in-law was 
sprawled on the kitchen floor, lying beside the 
body of one of the family pets that police had 
killed before her eyes.”  This is the beginning 
of an article by Baltimore Sun reporter Doug 
Donovan.  The story goes on to describe 
unlawful actions taken by a police department 
– actions that are becoming more and more 
common in this country.

In this instance the victims were Cheye 
Calvo, the Mayor of Berwyn Heights (a small 
bedroom community in Prince George’s 
County, Maryland), his family and the family’s 
two dogs.

The story begins when police officials in 
Arizona intercepted a package when a drug-
sniffing dog alerted them to the presence of 
marijuana.  The package was addressed to 
Trinity Tomsic, Mayor Calvo’s wife.  According 
to Calvo’s attorney, Timothy Maloney, an 
undercover officer in Prince George’s delivered 
the package around 6pm and was told by 
Calvo’s mother-in-law, Georgia Porter, to leave 
it on the porch.

The Baltimore Sun article reports that Mayor 

Calvo “…arrived home from his full-time job 
as an executive with SEED Foundation, which 
establishes urban public charter schools.  He 
took the unopened package inside and placed 
it on a table near the door.  He changed clothes 
and walked the dogs.  He returned and went 
upstairs to get dressed for an event.  As he 
changed clothes, SWAT team members darted 
across the fenced-in lot.  Porter was cooking 
in the kitchen and screamed when she saw the 
approaching masked men with guns.”

According to the Donavon article, the door 
was kicked in and gunshots rang out, Calvo 
said.  Police killed one dog, Payton even though 
Porter was standing next to him.  Police claimed 
the dogs “engaged” officers.  Calvo confirmed 
that Payton probably moved toward the door 
but would have ultimately done nothing more 
than lick them.  “He was an aggressive licker,” 
said Calvo.

According to Berwyn Heights police Chief 
Patrick A. Murphy his agency was never 
informed of the investigation, despite an 
existing memorandum of understanding to work 
together on such operations.

No evidence of illegal activity was found, 
and no one was arrested at Mayor Calvo’s  
house, yet neither county Police Chief Melvin 
C. High nor Sheriff Michael A. Jackson have 

BY SHEILA CASEY AND BARRY KISSIN / RCFP
US Attorney Jeff Taylor was sweating on 
August 6, as he laid out his case against the 
late Dr. Bruce Ivins at a news conference—and 
with good reason.  Anyone familiar with the 
case is well aware that Dr. Ivins was railroaded, 
and that the news conference was a flimsy web 
of lies. 

Ivins had nothing to do with the 2001 
anthrax attacks.  The attacks were almost 
certainly carried out by the only group that had 
the means to produce the highly weaponized 
anthrax in the letters:  the CIA and its 
contractor Battelle Memorial Institute of West 
Jefferson, Ohio. 

The DOJ-FBI frame-up of Ivins rests 
heavily upon the claim of new advances in 
genetic testing which supposedly prove that 
the killer anthrax could have come only from 
Ivins’ flask.

Jeff Taylor stated:  “The FBI sought out the 
best experts in the scientific community and, 

over time, four highly sensitive and specific 
tests were developed that were capable of 
detecting the unique qualities of the anthrax 
used in the 2001 attacks.”

This is an outright lie.  No special tests were 
required to assess the genetic heritage of the 
Ames strain in the envelopes.  The Washington 
Post reported on December 16, 2001 that “only 
five laboratories so far have been found to have 
spores with perfect genetic matches to those in 
the Senate letters.” 

The distinguishing feature of the anthrax 
that killed five people in 2001 is not related 
to its genes.  What made that anthrax unique 
was that it was highly weaponized.  Anthrax 
is a common pathogen found in the soil in 
many places.  It doesn’t become lethal unless 
produced in such a way that it behaves like a 
gas, floating easily in the air and deep into a 
victim’s lungs.  

The anthrax used in the attacks was beyond 

Anthrax Attacks Came Out of CIA Program

Mayor Calvo and his wife, Trinity, and their dogs, 
Payton and Chase, in happier times.
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infl ammatory foods would be sued by the FDA and 
put out of business, the letters warned.

And that’s just the beginning. Over the last 
several decades, the FDA has seized imports of herbs 
from South America, threatened honest supplement 
companies to remove accurate information from their 
labels, and pursued a campaign of intimidation and 
tyranny against virtually the entire natural products 
industry. In fact, the FDA has even ordered the 
destruction of recipe books containing dessert recipes 
using stevia (if you thought book burnings only 
happened in China? Think again...).

Why China and America both use censorship to 
protect the powerful

In all, the actions of the FDA makes China’s 
government look downright Libertarian. In the United 
States, the FDA has made sure that consumers have 
virtually zero access to truthful information about the 
benefi ts of nutritional supplements in much the same 
way the Chinese government blocks its citizens from 
having access to truthful information about human 
rights websites. These campaigns of censorship also 
happen for much the same reason:  to protect the status 
quo and prevent a revolution from taking place (in 
China, it would be a social revolution. In the US, it 
would be a health care revolution).

You see, when it comes to real freedom, it makes 
no difference that China is a communist government 
and America claims to be a democracy: America 
blocks its citizens from accessing all sorts of crucial 
information about health freedom, just like China 
censors its internet to prevent people from learning 
about political freedom. In fact, both China and the 
FDA use many of the same online technologies to 
search for “offending” websites that they can shut 
down, intimidate or threaten with legal action. Those 
technologies, of course, were created by American 
companies like Google. And it is American companies 
like Yahoo that gladly hand over free speech protestors 
to tyrannical governments, betraying the privacy of 
their users and colluding with the thought police of 
various nations.

So reporters can protest all they want at China’s 
censorship of the internet, but when they return home 
from the Olympics, they will return to nations that 
practice the same brand of crushing censorship... the 
kind of censorship that keeps consumers ignorant 
and uninformed, protecting the profi ts of drug 
companies and cancer centers, all while interfering 
with the distributing of truthful information about 
the astounding ability of foods, superfoods, herbs and 
nutritional supplements to prevent cancer, halt heart 
disease, reverse diabetes, dissolve kidney stones, end 
depression and greatly extend lifespan (among other 
benefi ts).

They will talk about how China’s citizens don’t 
have access to a free press, and then they’ll turn right 
around and execute the very same censorship they are 
criticizing by refusing to print stories about the fraud 
of modern medicine; the quackery of chemotherapy; 
the monopoly price controls of Big Pharma and the 
outright criminal actions of the FDA.

The US media mirrors China’s media censors
In fact, it is the mainstream media — the very group 

whining about freedom at the Olympics — that fully 
cooperates with the FDA by focusing its reporting 
on pharmaceuticals while ignoring the wealth of 
important information about natural remedies that 
could revolutionize health care and save the US more 
than $40 trillion over the next few decades.

Really? $40 trillion? Absolutely. According to 
the CDC and the National Institutes of Health, a 1% 
reduction in cancer mortality is worth about $500 
billion to the US economy over the long term. We 
have nutrients right now that can slash cancer rates by 
nearly 80 percent, across the entire population (vitamin 
D being the simplest one). That comes to $40 trillion 
in economic abundance from preventing cancer alone. 
(That’s enough money to rebuild every school, bridge, 
highway, park, library, airport and seaport in the entire 
country, by the way, but again, you’re not supposed to 
know that...)

The FDA doesn’t want anybody to know that 
Vitamin D prevents cancer, you see. That’s why 
no Vitamin D supplement company can make any 
statements at all about cancer. If they tried, they’d be 
arrested and dragged into prison like a Falun Gong 
member in Beijing. In China, of course, you might 
be sentenced to death and have your organs harvested 
and sold on the black market. In America, you might 
have your children kidnapped by state offi cials and 
watch in horror as their organs are destroyed by state-
mandated chemotherapy chemicals that you are then 
obliged to pay for (at monopoly prices, no less). Don’t 
believe this actually happens in the United States? 
Think again. Read the story of Abraham Cherrix:  
www.naturalnews.com/019617.html

Don’t believe for a minute that you are free in 

America. You are merely a subject that’s exploited 
by powerful corporations and corrupt government 
regulators working in collusion with a media institution 
engaged in all-out censorship of stories that threaten 
the status quo: health freedom, the truth about 9/11, 
voting fraud, the mass fl uoridation of public water 
supplies, the real story behind the fractional reserve 
banking system and other similar topics. While every 
American citizens is TOLD they are free, if you look 
at the man behind the curtain, you’ll realize it’s all just 
smoke and mirrors (and bombs and bullets).

Censorship is a tool that protects the powerful
Every government, you see, has its power base 

to protect, and in the US, the power base is the 
corporations. If you threaten the corporations by telling 
the truth about nutritional supplements or natural 
healing modalities, you will be arrested, imprisoned 
or run out of the country. It happens in America every 
day. That’s why all the really effective cancer clinics 
are in Mexico and South America — they’ve all had 
to fl ee the “health police” in the US that run around 
arresting people like Communist China Secret Police! 
Read my article documenting the true history of armed 
FDA raids on health clinics: www.naturalnews.com/
021791.html

The thought police aren’t limited to China
I hope this latest fi asco at the Olympics in Beijing 

will serve as a reminder that China isn’t the only 
country that isn’t free. The US, UK, Australia and 
most other western nations practice their own forms of 
censorship, and much of it is carried out at gunpoint. 
(Many health clinic raids in the US, for example, are 
carried out with SWAT teams armed with assault rifl es 
and body armor.)

When it comes to accessing accurate information 
about health and supplements, US citizens are no 
more free than China’s citizens, and they’re nowhere 
near as free as the citizens of Ecuador, for example, 
where a package of the Chanca Piedra herb just openly 
says, “Eliminates kidney stones.” Try to put that text 
on your bottle of herbs in the US and you’ll fi nd your 
product inventory confi scated by the FDA, which has 
become the “Ministry of Truth” on anything related 
to health.

While many reporters might be hoping for freedom 
in China right now, I’m hoping for freedom at home 
fi rst. Let’s reclaim our own freedom of speech right 
here at home before we go worrying about how other 
countries censor their news.

Words and ideas banned in China:
Falun Gong, Tiananmen Square, Religious worship 

(including Christianity), Voting rights, Workers’ 
rights, Civil liberties

Words and ideas banned in America:
Curing cancer with herbs, Saying no to vaccinations, 

Reversing heart disease with nutrition, Curing diabetes 
with vegetable juices, Eliminating depression with 
supplements, “Treating” any disease at all with herbs, 
Disagreeing with the “offi cial” explanation of 9/11 and 
the WTC7 building ... and more. 

And while some skeptics might say that China’s 
censorship is far more severe because it deals with 
human rights violations, I say the FDA’s censorship 
of truthful health information IS a human rights 
violation!

What could be more important to human rights than 
the right of an individual to protect and preserve their 
own life by learning the truth about nourishing foods? 
To deny a population access to truthful information 
about the life-protecting properties of common 
nutrients is, all by itself, a crime against humanity and 
a damning violation of human rights!

It’s always easy to fool the sheeple with TV 
propaganda

The most astonishing thing about all of this is that 
China’s citizens think they are free! And if you live in 
the US, I’m willing to bet you think you’re free, too.

Remember this: Tyranny is always, always, always 
sold to the People as freedom. Every government lies 
to its People, as it is a necessary component of creating 
the illusion of freedom. But there is no such thing as 
real freedom in a society that restricts the Peoples’ 
access to the very information they need in order 
to make informed decisions about their own lives. 
America, then, is no more “the Land of the Free” than 
China.

Want to make America free? You’ll have to take it 
back from those who stole it from you. Remember the 
words of Thomas Jefferson:

“And what country can preserve its liberties, if its 
rulers are not warned from time to time, that the people 
preserve the spirit of resistance? The tree of liberty 
must be refreshed from time to time with the blood of 
patriots and tyrants.”

Mike Adams is the Health Ranger and writes, lectures, and 
podcasts on health related issues.  He operates the website 
NaturalNews.com

 FDA Enforces China Style Censorship at Home

installed by Urosevich had failed to fi x a 
problem with the computer clock, which 
employees from Diebold and the Georgia 
Secretary of State’s offi ce had been told 
the patch was designed specifi cally to 
address.

Some critics of electronic voting raised 
questions about the 2002 Georgia race 
even at the time. Incumbent Democratic 
Sen. Max Cleland, who was fi ve 
percentage points ahead of Republican 
challenger Saxby Chambliss in polls taken 
a week before the vote, lost 53% to 46%. 
Incumbent Democratic Governor Roy 
Barnes, who led challenger Sonny Perdue 
in the polls by eleven points, lost 51% 
to 46%. However, because the Diebold 
machines used throughout the state 
provided no paper trail, it was impossible 
to ask for a recount in either case.

Concerned by the electoral 
outcome, the whistleblower approached 
Spoonamore because of his qualifi cations 
and asked him to examine the Diebold 
patch.

McCain adviser reported patch to 
Justice Department

The Ohio press conference was 
organized by Cliff Arnebeck and three 
other attorneys, who had fi led a challenge 
to the results of that the 2004 presidential 
election in Ohio in December, 2004. 
That challenge was withdrawn, but in 

August 2006 Arnebeck fi led a new case, 
King Lincoln Bronzeville Neighborhood 
Association v. Blackwell, alleging civil 
rights violations in the 2004 voting. The 
case was stayed in 2007. On Thursday, 
Arnebeck fi led a motion to remove the 
stay and allow fresh investigation.

Individuals close to Arnebeck’s 
offi ce said Spoonamore confi rmed that 
the patch included nothing to repair a 
clock problem. Instead, he identifi ed two 
parallel programs, both having the full 
software code and even the same audio 
instructions for the deaf. Spoonamore 
said he could not understand the need for 
a second copy of the exact same program 
— and without access to the machine 
for which the patch was designed, he 
could not learn more. Instead, he said he 
took the evidence to the Cyber-Security 
Division of the Department of Justice and 
reported the series of events to authorities. 
The Justice Department has not yet acted 
on his report.

Allegations surrounding Ohio in 
2004

At the Ohio press conference 
yesterday, the former McCain adviser 
said Michael Connell, of the Republican 
internet development fi rm New Media 
Communications, had designed a 
system that made possible the real-time 
“tuning” of election tabulators once Ohio 
Secretary of State Kenneth Blackwell had 

outsourced the hosting of vote counting 
on the same server which hosted GOP 
campaign IT systems. He said he didn’t 
believe Connell was behind the alleged 
fraud, but that he should be considered a 
key witness.

Spoonamore also confi rmed he’s 
working with Connell on overseas election 
issues and that Connell is now working as 
John McCain’s IT developer.

Connell has a long history with the 
Republican Party’s IT infrastructure. 
In 2001, for example, he set up 
majoritywhip.gov for then House Majority 
Whip Tom DeLay. He also helped build 
georgewbush.com, as well as the Ohio 
GOP site Spoonamore referenced.

Sources close to Spoonamore said he 
was very concerned that he would lose his 
contracts as a result of coming forward 
and would take a “large fi nancial hit.” 
These sources added that, despite his 
concerns, Spoonamore felt obligated to 
reveal what he knows to the public. “He 
felt he had no choice as an American 
citizen but to come forward, and he also 
knows the likely consequences of him 
doing so,” one source said.

Larisa Alexandrovna is a journalist, essayist and 
poet. She is currently managing news editor for 
Raw Story.  Muriel Kane is a journalist for Raw 
Story.

GOP Cyber-Security Expert Confi rms: 
Diebold Rigged 2002 Elections in Georgia

cutting edge.  Donald A. Henderson, 
former assistant secretary for the Offi ce 
of Public Health Preparedness at the 
Department of Health and Human 
Services, told Science magazine: “It just 
didn’t have to be that good” to be lethal.
Why the killer anthrax was so deadly

1. Precisely sized particles—1.5 to 5 
microns.  Anything smaller is exhaled, 
anything larger tends to get caught either 
in the nose or in the cilia in the trachea.   

2. Coated with silica.  The silica 
acted as a buffer, preventing spores from 
adhering to one another.  The silica on 
the attack anthrax rested on a thin layer 
of polymerized glass, which is a highly 
advanced technique for coating anthrax 
spores.  To do this required a “spray 
dryer,” the cheapest of which sells for 
$50,000.  The lyophilizer in Ivins’ lab is 
used to dry anthrax, but can NOT be used 
to coat the spores with silica.  Ivins did not 
have a spray dryer.  

3. Highly concentrated.  The letter to 
Senator Daschle’s offi ce contained two 
grams of anthrax, about the weight of a 
dime.  Each gram contained a trillion pure 
spores of anthrax, or enough to kill 200 
million people.  

4. Electro-statically charged.  A slight 
charge on each spore caused it to repel the 
other spores and spread out into the room 
after the envelope was opened.  

It is these attributes of the anthrax—
not its genetic heritage—which made it so 
unusual and so lethal.  
The source of the anthrax was clear in 2001

US Attorney Jeff Taylor characterized 
a fl ask in Dr. Ivin’s possession as “the 
murder weapon.”  But a Dec. 12, 2001 
article in the Baltimore Sun stated: 

“For nearly a decade, U.S. Army 
scientists at Dugway Proving Ground 
in Utah have made small quantities of 
weapons-grade anthrax that is virtually 
identical to the powdery spores used in the 
mail attacks that have killed fi ve people.” 

The article refers to Dugway as “the 
only site in the United States where 
weapons-grade anthrax has been made in 
recent years,” and also includes this:

“Dugway’s production of weapons-
grade anthrax, which has never before 
been publicly revealed, is apparently 
the fi rst by the U.S. government since 
President Richard M. Nixon ordered the 
U.S. offensive biowarfare program closed 
in 1969.”

The following day in 2001, The 
Washington Post echoed the Sun article:

“An Army biological and 
chemical warfare facility 
in Utah has been quietly 
developing a virulent, 
weapons-grade formulation 
of anthrax spores since at 
least 1992.” 

On Dec 16, 2001, 
The Washington Post 
corroborated the Sun report 
by stating that “Dugway 
is the only facility known 
in recent years to have 
processed anthrax spores 
into the powdery form that 
is most easily inhaled,”   

stating, “Army offi cials in Washington 
said yesterday that Fort Detrick does not 
have the equipment for making dried 
anthrax spores.”

On September 4, 2001, The New York 
Times explained: 

“Over the past several years, the 
United States has embarked on a program 
of secret research on biological weapons 
. . . even the [Clinton] White House was 
unaware of their full scope. The projects, 
which have not been previously disclosed 
. . . have been embraced by the Bush 
administration, which intends to expand 
them.”

These projects involve the CIA, 
Battelle Memorial Laboratories in West 
Jefferson, Ohio, and the Army at Dugway 
in Utah. 

“[T]he need to keep such  projects 
secret was a signifi cant reason behind 
President Bush’s recent rejection of a 
draft agreement to strengthen the germ-
weapons treaty, [the 1972 Biological 
Weapons Convention,] which has been 
signed by 143 nations.”

Had the treaty been strengthened, the 
Dugway and West Jefferson sites, where 
the weaponized anthrax is made by CIA 

contractor Battelle, would have been 
subject to international inspections.  

The DOJ-FBI news conference on 
August 6, 2008 was a deliberate attempt 
to divert attention from the secret anthrax 
weaponization project by pinning the 
crimes on a dead man.  So far the DOJ-
FBI have succeeded in covering up the 
real perpetrators of the crime, concealing 
the illegal weapons program, and 
persuading many that it is time to close 
the investigation.

Dr. Ivins was an immunologist; 

he had neither the knowledge nor the 
equipment to produce the silica-coated, 
electro-statically charged, 1.5 to 5 micron 
sized, one trillion spore per gram anthrax 
that was mailed to Senators Leahy and 
Daschle. 

The DOJ has made much of the fact 
that Ivins worked 45 extra hours in 
September and October of 2001.  Yet when 
the FBI attempted to reverse engineer the 
weaponized anthrax from the attacks, 
they admitted after a year of trying they 
were unable to come up with a product as 
potent as that in the letters.
Scientists doubt FBI’s story

As far back as October 28, 2002, 
The Washington Post reported that bio-
weapons experts were skeptical about the 
FBI’s view that the anthrax in the letters 
could have come from a lone nut:

“In my opinion, there are maybe 
four or fi ve people in the whole country 
who might be able to make this stuff, 
and I’m one of them,” said Richard O. 
Spertzel, former deputy commander of 
USAMRIID,  “And even with a good lab 
and staff to help run it, it might take me a 
year to come up with a product as good.”

Writing in The New York Times 
on Aug. 9, 2008, Gerry Andrews, an 
assistant professor of microbiology at 
the University of Wyoming, described 
the envelopes’ contents as “a startlingly 
refi ned weapons-grade anthrax spore 
preparation, the likes of which had never 
been seen before by personnel at Fort 
Detrick.”  He continued: “It is extremely 
improbable that this type of preparation 
could ever have been produced at Fort 
Detrick, certainly not of the grade and 
quality found in that envelope.”
Abundant evidence that Ivins is innocent

Ivins passed two polygraph tests 
and no link was made between his 

handwriting and that on the anthrax 
letters.  Investigators were so frustrated at 
Ivins passing the polygraph tests that they 
searched his house for books or articles on 
how to fool a polygraph, but found none.   

US Attorney Jeff Taylor stated that 
the investigators zeroed in on Ivins when 
they “conducted additional investigative 
steps,” and thus were “able to narrow the 
focus even further, exclude individuals, 
and that left us looking at Dr. Ivins.”  

Those “additional investigative steps” 

Anthrax Attacks Came from
 CIA/Battelle Program

US Biowarfare facility at Ft. Detrick in Fredrick Maryland

Bruce Ivins shown here teaching children to juggle. Contrary to his characterization by the FBI, 
Ivins was a respected member of the community, a Red Cross volunteer, pianist.
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BY SHERWOOD ROSS  
The trouble with thinking 9/11 was an 
inside job staged by George W. Bush 
& Co. is that it defies belief that any 
president might be capable of such an 
iniquitous crime against his own people.  

Yet, subsequent Bush actions, such 
as lying the nation into war, makes 
one wonder if the man didn’t earlier 
create the 9/11 massacres to justify his 
aggressions.  After all, his record reveals 
him to be a serial liar, warmonger, tyrant, 
torturer, and usurper of civil liberties. 
Here are a few illegal actions that betray 
what Bush is really about.

• Bush lied the US into what former 
UN Secretary-General Kofi Annan called 
an “illegal” war on Iraq. This conflict has 
killed 650,000 civilians, wounded over 
a million more, drove nearly 2-million 
from their country, and turned life into 
a living hell for the rest. The death toll 
there is already equal to about 240 WTC 
massacres, yet Bush persists in waging 
the war. 

• Bush okayed $1.5-trillion for new 
weapons’ research including grisly 
weapons that would thrill mad scientists, 
such as sound waves that crush a victim’s 
internal organs. Another gem is, “rods 
from god,” to hurl tungsten poles from 
Earth orbit down upon its victims at 
7,200 miles an hour, striking with atomic 
fury. He is illegally militarizing space. 

These are not the actions of a humanist.
• Bush has allowed illegal radioactive 

ammunition fired in Afghanistan and Iraq 
that poison civilian populations and US 
troops, as well as cluster bombs. Does 
this evince concern for human life?

 • Bush has made himself master of 
the greatest spy apparatus the world has 
ever known at a cost to taxpayers of $50-
billion annually. He authorized NSA to 
spy illegally on Americans, allegedly 
to catch terrorists. If this was the true 
reason, why did he also eavesdrop on 
UN officials? 

 • Bush authorized CIA agents to go 
to foreign countries to kidnap “suspects” 
and dump them in distant prisons to 
be tortured with no warrants signed to 
seize them, no charges brought against 
them, and no lawyers to defend them. 
In his secret prisons there may be many 
thousands held illegally, and tortured, 
while all the time he lies to the world 
“we don’t torture.” Is this a man with 
empathy for others?

 • Bush is also funding hundreds 
of biotechnology labs to create deadly 
strains of exotic killer diseases at a 
cost to taxpayers of $50-billion. Many 
operate in secret, illegally violating 
transparency rules.

On Bush’s watch, anthrax germs  
originating from a military laboratory 
in Fort Detrick, Md., were mysteriously 

unleashed upon two of his political 
opponents in the US Senate that killed 
five people and sickened 17 others and 
temporarily shut down the Congress.

Peculiarly, the perpetrators of the 
anthrax panic and the massacres at 
the WTC and Pentagon have not been 
caught. Why not? Is it just possible the 
White House doesn’t want the killers 
apprehended?

For all these, and many other reasons, 
it’s worth reconsidering the arguments 
of those who claim the 9/11 events were 
staged by the White House to rush a 
frightened nation into war.

In the March/April issue of Tikkun, a 
bimonthly “Jewish Critique of Politics, 
Culture & Society,” author Dr. David 
Ray Griffin asserts the Administration 
never proved the 9/11 attacks were made 
by Osama bin Laden. Griffin, a professor 
of philosophy and theology at Claremont 
Graduate College, Calif., and author of 
The New Pearl Harbor (Olive Branch 
Press) writes the FBI has “no hard 
evidence” of bin Laden’s culpability.

Griffin asks why WTC Building 7, 
not struck by an airplane, collapsed upon 
itself in the same manner as Buildings 1 
and 2, with no steel remains standing? 
And he notes steel does not melt until it 
reaches 2800 degrees F. and the jet fuel 
used by the airliners that hit WTC burned 

Crimes Suggest Complicity 
Do Bush’s Subsequent Crimes Suggest Complicity In 9/11?

BY WEBSTER G. TARPLEY
Washington DC, August 10, 2008 
– Clearly playing the role of the 
aggressor, the NATO puppet regime of 
Mikhail Saakashvili has carried out a 
midnight sneak attack against Russian 
peacekeepers in the province of South 
Ossetia. Those peacekeepers have been 
there for 15 years under an agreement 
with Georgia. Saakashvili is a protégé 
and creature of Zbigniew Brzezinski, the 
foreign policy boss of the Barack Obama 
presidential campaign. As is explained in 
my book Obama-The Postmodern Coup: 
The Making of a Manchurian Candidate, 
Saakashvili was brought to power in 
2003-2004 by a people power coup or 
CIA color revolution, directed by the 
Brzezinski clan and financed by George 
Soros, one of Obama’s key financial 
backers. In a very real sense, it is the 
Obama campaign which has attacked 
Russia in South Ossetia.

Responding to this provocation, 
Russia has struck back powerfully, 
hurling the Georgian military into full 
retreat. The 3000% increase in Georgian 
military spending on US military 
hardware since 2004 has not had the 
desired effect. But the Georgians have 
killed a score of Russian troops and 
shot down several aircraft. Russia is 

blockading the Georgian Black Sea 
coast and has already sunk a Georgian 
warship. The US regime, the butchers of 
Iraq, are now whining that the Russian 
response is “disproportionate,” and that 
regime change is inadmissible! McCain 
responded by aggressive posturing 
against Russia scripted by Ian Brzezinski, 
as expected. At the Olympics, Bush 
had a heated exchange with Russian 
Prime Minister Putin over the Georgian 
aggression. Bush has dropped his plans 
to attack Iran and North Korea, and is 
now slavishly following Brzezinski’s 
orders by concentrating on provoking 
Russia and China.

Most interesting is the response 
of Brzezinski’s other puppet, Obama. 
The Messiah first intoned that it was 
necessary to show restraint, and stop 
the armed conflict. He talked then to 
NSC Director Hadley, Saakashvili, Rice, 
and unspecified foreign policy advisers 
— undoubtedly the Brzezinskis, Zbig 
and Mark. Notice Obama’s failure to 
talk with a single Russian leader — he 
failed to bring anybody together this 
time. Then Obama switched to a full 
warmonger line, identical to that of 
Bush: Obama now lied that Russia had 
invaded Georgian sovereignty. Obama’s 
spokesman, Ben Rhodes, added that 

Russia was responsible for the conflict. 
This goes to show that Obama is a ticket 
to World War III on the Brzezinski Plan, 
the crackpot design to break up Russia 
and China, securing another century 
for the Anglo-American world empire. 
Because Brzezinski’s strategic insanity 
unfolds on a scale more vast than that 
of the neocons, Obama is indeed a far 
bigger warmonger than Bush.

“In his later statement, Mr. Obama 
said, “What is clear is that Russia has 
invaded Georgia’s sovereign — has 
encroached on Georgia’s sovereignty, 
and it is very important for us to resolve 
this issue as quickly as possible”’ the 
New York Times reported. Obama is 
morally insane, since Georgia is the 
aggressor and Russia is acting in self-
defense. Russian peacekeepers have been 
stationed in South Ossetia for about 15 
years under a Russian-Georgian bilateral 
agreement, which the provocateur 
Saakashvili has now chosen to violate. 
The pseudo-democratic Saakashvili has 
declared martial law and is proceeding 
to liquidate his internal opposition — a 
favorite Saakashvili trick. In November 
2007, when opposition to the NATO 
“free market” kleptocrats was getting 
out of hand after a large demonstration, 

Brzezinski’s Georgia Puppets Attack Russia – 
World War Three In Sight

BY PAUL CRAIG ROBERTS
The neoconned Bush Regime and the Israeli-occupied 
American media are heading the innocent world toward 
nuclear war.  

Back in the Reagan years the National Endowment 
for Democracy was created as a Cold War tool. Today 
the NED is a neocon-controlled agent for US world 
hegemony. Its main function is to pour US money and 
election-rigging into former constituent parts of the 
Soviet Union in order to ring Russia with American 
puppet states.  

The neoconservative Bush Regime used the NED to 
intervene in Ukrainian and Georgian internal affairs in 
keeping with the neoconservative plan to establish US-
friendly and Russia-hostile political regimes in these 
two former constituent parts of Russia and the Soviet 
Union. 

The NED was also used to dismember the former 
Yugoslavia with its interventions in Slovakia, Serbia, 
and Montenegro. 

Allen Weinstein, who helped draft the legislation 
establishing NED, told the Washington Post in 1991 
that much of what the NED does “today was done 
covertly 25 years ago by the CIA.”

The Bush Regime, having established a puppet, 
Mikhail Saakashvili, as president of Georgia, tried to 
bring Georgia into NATO.  

For readers too young to know, the North Atlantic 
Treaty Organization was a military alliance between 
the US and Western European countries to resist any 
Soviet move into Western Europe [and to ensure 
European countries lined up behind the US, and bought 
its weapons systems].  There has been no reason for 
NATO since the Soviet Union’s internal political 
collapse almost two decades ago. The neocons turned 
NATO into another tool, like the NED, for US world 
hegemony.  Subsequent US administrations violated 
the understandings that President Reagan had reached 
with Mikhail Gorbachev, the last Soviet leader, and 
have incorporated former parts of the Soviet empire 
into NATO.  The neocon goal of ringing Russia with 
a hostile military alliance has been proclaimed many 
times.

Western European members of NATO balked at 
the admission of Georgia, as they understood it as 
a provocative affront to Russia, on whom Western 
Europe is dependent for natural gas.  Western 
Europeans are also disturbed at the Bush regime’s 
intentions to install ballistic missile defenses in Poland 
and the Czech Republic as the consequence will be 
Russian nuclear cruise missiles targeted on European 
capitals. Europeans don’t see the advantage of helping 
the US block Russian nuclear retaliation against the US 
at the expense of their own existence.  Ballistic missile 
defenses are not useful against cruise missiles.  

Every country is tired of war except for the US. War, 
including nuclear war, is the neoconservative strategy 
for world hegemony. 

The entire world, except for Americans, knows that 
the outbreak of armed conflict between Russian and 
Georgian forces in South Ossetia was entirely due to 
the US and its Georgia puppet, Saakashvili.  Americans, 
alone in the world, are unaware that the hostilities were 
initiated by Saakashvili, because Bush, Cheney and 
the Israeli-occupied American media have again lied 
to them.

Everyone else in the world knows that the unstable 
and corrupt Saakashvili, who proclaims democracy and 
runs a police state,  would not have taken on Russia by 
attacking South Ossetia unless given the go-ahead by 
Washington.

The purpose of the Georgian attack on the Russian 
population of South Ossetia is twofold:  

To convince Europeans that their action in delaying 
Georgia’s NATO membership is the cause of “the 
Russian aggression” and that to save Georgia from 
conquest Georgia must be given NATO membership.

To ethnically cleanse South Ossetia of its Russian 
population.  Two thousand Russian civilians were 
targeted and killed by the US-equipped and trained 
Georgian Army, and tens of thousands fled into Russia.  
Having achieved this goal, Saakashvili and his puppet-
masters in Washington quickly called for a cease fire 
and a halt to “the Russian invasion.”  The hope is 
that the Russian population will be afraid to return or 
can be prevented from returning, thus removing the 
secessionist threat.

No doubt the Bush Regime can con the American 
population, just as it did with Iraqi weapons of mass 
destruction, Iranian nukes, and 9/11 itself, but the rest of 
the world is not buying it, not even America’s bought-
and-paid-for European allies. 

Writing in the Asia Times, Ambassador M. K. 
Bhadrakumar, a former career diplomat in the Indian 
Foreign Service, notes the disinformation that is being 
peddled by the Bush regime and the US media and 
reports that “at the outbreak of violence, Russia had 
tried to have the United Nations Security Council issue 
a statement calling on Georgia and South Ossetia to 
immediately lay down weapons.  However, Washington 
was disinterested.”

Amb. Bhadrakumar notes that the American and 
Georgian resort to violence and propaganda has 
brought an end to the Russian government’s belief that 
diplomacy and good will can bring about a settlement of 
the South Ossetia issue.  If Russia wished, Russia could 
terminate Georgia’s existence as a separate country at 
will, and there is nothing the US could do about it.

It is certain that the Georgian invasion of South 
Ossetia was a Bush Regime orchestrated event.  The 

American media and the neocon think tanks were 
ready with their propaganda blitzes.  Neocons had 
ready a Wall Street Journal editorial page article for 
Saakashvili that declares “the war in Georgia is a war 
for the West.”  

Faced with the collapse of his army when Russia sent 
in troops to protect South Ossetians from the Georgian 
troops, Saakashvili declared: “This is not about Georgia 
any more. It is about America, its values.”

The neocon Heritage Foundation in Washington, 
D.C., quickly called a conference hosted by warmonger 
Ariel Cohen, “Urgent! Event: Russian-Georgian War: A 
Challenge for the U.S. and the World.”

The Washington Post hosted neocon Robert Kagen’s 
war drums, “Putin Makes His Move.”  

Only a fool like Kagen could think that if Putin 
intended to invade Georgia he would do so from 
Beijing, or that after sending the American-trained 
Georgian army in flight, he would not continue and 
conquer all of Georgia in order to put an end to 
American machinations on Russia’s most sensitive 
border, machinations that are likely to eventually end 
in nuclear war.  

The New York Times hosted  Billy Kristol’s rant, 
“Will Russia Get Away With It?”  Kristol thunders 
against “dictatorial and aggressive and fanatical 
regimes” that “seem happy to work together to weaken 
the influence of the United States and its democratic 
allies.”  Kristol presents a new axis of evil--Russia, 
China, North Korea and Iran--and warns against “delay 
and irresolution” that “simply invite future threats and 
graver dangers.”

In other words, “attack Russia now.”  
Dick Cheney, the insane American Vice President, 

telephoned Saakashvili to express US solidarity with 
Georgia in the conflict with Russia and declared: 
“Russian aggression must not go unanswered. Only 
an  idiot would tell Saakashvili anything other than “to 
cease immediately.”

What must be the effect on US Intelligence services 
and the US military of Cheney’s propagandistic and 
irresponsible statement of US support for Georgia’s 
war crimes?  Does anyone really believe that the CIA or 
any US intelligence service told the vice president that 
Russia opened the conflict with an invasion?  Russian 
troops arrived in South Ossetia after thousands of 
Ossetians had been killed by the Georgian attack and 
after tens of thousands of Ossetians had fled into Russia 
to escape the Georgian attack.  According to news 
reports, Russian forces have captured Americans who 
were with the Georgian troops directing their attack on 
civilians.  

The US military certainly has no resources for 
a war against Russia on top of lost wars in Iraq and 
Afghanistan and a planned war with Iran.

With its Georgian venture, the Bush Regime is 
guilty of a new round of war crimes. What will be the 
consequence?  

Many will reply that having gotten away with 
9/11, Afghanistan, Iraq, and with its preparations for 
attacking Iran, the Bush Regime will get away with its 
Georgian venture as well.  

Possibly, however, this time the Bush Regime has 
overreached. 

Certainly Russia now recognizes that the US is 
determined to exert hegemony over Russia and is 
Russia’s worst enemy.  

China realizes the US threat to its own energy supply 
and, thereby, economy.  

Even America’s European allies, chafing under their 
role of supplying troops for America’s Empire, must 
now realize that being an American ally is dangerous 
and has no benefits.  If Georgia becomes a NATO 
member and renews its attack on South Ossetia, it must 
drag Europe into a war with Russia, a main supplier of 
energy to Europe.

Moreover, if Russian troops are sent across European 
frontiers, there is nothing to stop them.

What does America offer Europe, aside from the 
millions of dollars it pays to buy off Europe’s political 
leaders to insure that they betray their own peoples?  
Nothing whatsoever.  

The only military threat that Europe faces comes 
from being dragged into America’s wars for American 
hegemony.

The US is financially bankrupt, with budget and 
trade deficits that exceed the combined deficits of 
the rest of the world together.  The dollar has wilted.  
The American consumer market is dying from the 
offshoring of American jobs and, thereby, incomes, and 
from the wealth effect of the real estate and derivatives 
collapses.  The US has nothing to offer Europe.  Indeed, 
American economic decline is killing European exports 
by driving up the value of the euro.  

America long ago lost the moral high ground.  
Hypocrisy has become America’s best known hallmark.  
Bush, the invader of Afghanistan and Iraq on the basis 
of lies and deception, thunders at Russia for coming to 
the defense of its peacekeepers and Russian citizens 
in South Ossetia.  Bush who ripped Kosovo out of 
Serbia’s heart and handed it to the Muslims, has taken 
an adamant stand against other separatist movements, 
especially the South Ossetians who wish to be part of 
the Russian Federation.

The neoconned Bush Regime is furious that the 
Russian bear was not intimidated by the US supported 
aggression of the American puppet state, Georgia.  
Instead of accepting the act of American hegemony 
that the neocon script called for, Russia sent the 

President Bush, Will You 
Please Shut Up?
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BY GEORGE NELSON, COLONEL, USAF (RET.)
The “precautionary principle” is based 
on the fact that the failure to prove a 
proposition completely does not disprove 
the proposition. If the proposition warns 
of an ongoing or oncoming disaster 
(e.g. global warming) it is wise to take 
precautions. The proposition arrived 
at here is this: the 9/11 hijackings and 
damage to buildings were not the work 
of Arab terrorists, but appear to have 
been part of a black operation carried 
out with the cooperation of elements in 
our government.

In July 1965 I had just been 
commissioned as a Second Lieutenant in 
the US Air Force after taking a solemn 
oath that I would protect and defend 
the Constitution against all enemies, 
foreign and domestic, and that I would 
bear true faith and allegiance to the 
same. I took that oath very seriously. It 
was my constant companion throughout 
a thirty-year military career in the field 
of aircraft maintenance.

As an additional duty, aircraft 
maintenance officers are occasionally 
tasked as members of aircraft accident 
investigation boards and my personal 
experience was no exception. In 1989 
I graduated from the Aircraft Mishap 
Investigation Course at the Institute 
of Safety and Systems Management at 
the University of Southern California. 
In addition to my direct participation 
as an aircraft accident investigator, I 
reviewed countless aircraft accident 
investigation reports for thoroughness 
and comprehensive conclusions for 
the Inspector General, HQ Pacific Air 
Forces during the height of the Vietnam 
conflict.

In all my years of direct and indirect 
participation, I never witnessed nor 
even heard of an aircraft loss, where the 
wreckage was accessible, that prevented 
investigators from finding enough hard 
evidence to positively identify the 
make, model, and specific registration 
number of the aircraft — and in most 
cases the precise cause of the accident. 
This is because every military and 
civilian passenger-carrying aircraft 
have many parts that are identified for 
safety of flight. That is, if any of the 
parts were to fail at any time during a 
flight, the failure would likely result 
in the catastrophic loss of aircraft 
and passengers. Consequently, these 
parts are individually controlled by a 
distinctive serial number and tracked 

by a records section of the maintenance 
operation and by another section called 
plans and scheduling.

Following a certain number of flying 
hours or, in the case of landing gears, a 
certain number of takeoff-and-landing 
cycles, these critical parts are required 
to be changed, overhauled or inspected 
by specialist mechanics. When these 
parts are installed, their serial numbers 
are married to the aircraft registration 
numbers in the aircraft records and 
the plans and scheduling section will 
notify maintenance specialists when 
the parts must be replaced. If the parts 
are not replaced within specified time or 
cycle limits, the airplane will normally 
be grounded until the maintenance 
action is completed. Most of these 
time-change parts, whether hydraulic 
flight surface actuators , pumps, landing 
gears, engines or engine components, 
are virtually indestructible. It would be 
impossible for an ordinary fire resulting 
from an airplane crash to destroy or 
obliterate all of those critical time-
change parts or their serial numbers. I 
repeat, impossible.

Considering the catastrophic 
incidents of September 11, 2001, certain 
troubling but irrefutable conclusions 
must be drawn from the known facts. I 
get no personal pleasure or satisfaction 
from reporting my own assessment of 
these facts.

United Airlines Flight 93
This flight was reported by the 

federal government to be a Boeing 757 
aircraft, registration number N591UA, 
carrying 45 persons, including four 
Arab hijackers who had taken control 
of the aircraft, crashing the plane in a 
Pennsylvania farm field.

Aerial photos of the alleged crash 
site were made available to the general 
public. They show a significant hole in 
the ground, but private investigators 
were not allowed to come anywhere 
near the crash site. If an aircraft crash 
caused the hole in the ground, there 
would have been literally hundreds 
of serially-controlled time-change 
parts within the hole that would have 
proved beyond any shadow of doubt 
the precise tail-number or identity of 
the aircraft. However, the government 
has not produced any hard evidence 
that would prove beyond a doubt that 
the specifically alleged aircraft crashed 
at that site. On the contrary, it has been 
reported that the aircraft, registration 

number N591UA, is still in operation.
American Airlines Flight 11
This flight was reported by the 

government to be a Boeing 767, 
registration number N334AA, carrying 
92 people, including five Arabs who 
had hijacked the plane. This plane 
was reported to have crashed into the 
north tower of the WTC complex of 
buildings.

Again, the government would have 
no trouble proving its case if only a few 
of the hundreds of serially controlled 
parts had been collected to positively 
identify the aircraft. A Boeing 767 
landing gear or just one engine would 
have been easy to find and identify.

United Airlines Flight 175
This flight was reported to be 

a Boeing 767, registration number 
N612UA, carrying 65 people, including 
the crew and five hijackers. It reportedly 
flew into the south tower of the WTC.

Once more, the government has yet 
to produce one serially controlled part 
from the crash site that would have 
dispelled any questions as to the identity 
of the specific airplane.

American Airlines Flight 77
This was reported to be a Boeing 

757, registration number N644AA, 
carrying 64 people, including the flight 
crew and five hijackers. This aircraft, 
with a 125-foot wingspan, was reported 
to have crashed into the Pentagon, 
leaving an entry hole no more than 65 
feet wide.

Following cool-down of the 
resulting fire, this crash site would have 
been very easy to collect enough time-
change equipment within 15 minutes to 
positively identify the aircraft registry. 
There was apparently some aerospace 
type of equipment found at the site but 
no attempt was made to produce aerial 
numbers or to identify the specific parts 
found. Some of the equipment removed 
from the building was actually hidden 
from public view.

Conclusion
The government alleges that four 

wide-body airliners crashed on the 
morning of September 11, 2001, 
resulting in the deaths of more than 
3,000 human beings, yet not one piece 
of hard aircraft evidence has been 
produced in an attempt to positively 
identify any of the four aircraft. On the 
contrary, it seems only that all potential 
evidence was deliberately kept hidden 
from public view. The hard evidence 
would have included hundreds of critical 
time-change aircraft items, plus security 
videotapes that were confiscated by the 
FBI immediately following each tragic 
episode.

With all the evidence readily 
available at the Pentagon crash site, any 
unbiased rational investigator could only 
conclude that a Boeing 757 did not fly 
into the Pentagon as alleged. Similarly, 
with all the evidence available at the 
Pennsylvania crash site, it was most 
doubtful that a passenger airliner caused 
the obvious hole in the ground and 
certainly not the Boeing 757 as alleged. 
Regarding the planes that  flew into the 
WTC towers, it is possible that heavy 
aircraft were involved in each incident, 
but no evidence has been produced that 
would add credence to the government’s 
theoretical version of what actually 
caused the total destruction of the 
buildings, let alone proving the identity 
of the aircraft. That is the problem with 
the government’s 9/11 story. It is time to 
apply the precautionary principle.

As painful and heartbreaking as 
was the loss of innocent lives and the 
lingering health problems of thousands 
more, a most troublesome and 
nightmarish probability remains that so 
many Americans appear to be involved 
in the most heinous conspiracy in our 
country’s history

This statement was originally posted  in 2006.  
Col. Nelson is a member of Pilots for 9/11 
Truth. www.PilotsFor911Truth.org

911 and the Precautionary Principle
 Aircraft Parts as a Clue to their Identity

Researcher Aidan Monaghan has 
been trying for two years to obtain any 
documentation confirming the identity 
of the planes involved in the events 
of 9/11.  He has submitted a series of 
Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) 
requests to the NTSB, the government 
agency charged with investigating 
passenger airliner crashes.  He has run 
into a stone wall of refusal.  

Responding to this series of FOIA 
requests the NTSB has not produced 
even one document, not a single part 
number, not even the serial numbers 
from the flight data recorders, to 
establish the identity of the aircraft.  

In the latest, August 11, 2008 
Freedom of Information Act appeal 
reply from the National Transportation 
Safety Board, the NTSB affirms that 
it possesses no records pertaining 
to positively identified wreckage 
recovered from the four aircraft 
involved in the terrorist attacks of 
September 11, 2001. Such wreckage 
includes the Flight Data Recorders 
attributed by the NTSB in Factual 
Reports to American Airlines flight 77 
and United Airlines flight 93.

NTSB reply in response to Mr. 

Monaghan’s FOIA request:
[...]Safety Board does not have any 

records that “[reveal] the process by 
which wreckage was recovered from the 
aircraft used during the terrorist 
attacks of September 11, 2001.” 
As you probably know, the Safety 
Board assisted the Federal Bureau 
of Investigation (FBI) as the FBI 
investigated the circumstances under 
which the four aircraft crashed, 
pursuant to Congress’s direction 
requiring the Board to relinquish its 
investigative priority to the FBI when 
the Safety Board and FBI determine 
that an intentional criminal act 
likely caused the accident at issue. 
49 U.S.C. § 113 1(a)(2)(B). As such, 
the Safety Board did not ensure that 
the owners of the aircraft completed 
wreckage release forms, as the Board 
typically does in investigations in 
which the Board has priority. See 
49 C.F.R. § 831. 12(b). Overall, 
the Safety Board does not have any 
records that describe the “process” by 
which the Board or the FBI identified 
wreckage.

Joseph G. Osterman
Managing Director

NTSB Elaborates On Absent Records Pertaining To 
Positively Identified 9/11 Aircraft Wreckage, Including 2 

Flight Data Recorders
A follow-up to the question of why there has been no evidence

 produced to confirm the identity of the planes involved in the events of 9/11.  

BY DEAN M. JACKSON
Testifying before the 9/11 
Commission, General Richard Myers, 
Chairman of the Joint Chiefs of Staff, 
told the commission in response to 
a question on NORAD’s failure to 
anticipate the 9/11 attacks, “I can’t 
answer the hypothetical. It’s more  
— it’s the way that we were directed 
to posture, looking outward.” As 
we will see below, NORAD, since 
its inception in 1958, was tasked 
with more than merely “looking 
outward”.

I found General Myers’ testimony 
on the capabilities of NORAD on 9/
11 to be surprising, since I had always  
understood that NORAD’s mission 
was more than “looking outward.” 
What I needed was documentation that 
would confirm my understanding that 
NORAD was tasked with monitoring 
American airspace and intercepting 
errant aircraft in American skies 
before 9/11. The following pre-9/11 
citations conclusively document 
the true mission and capabilities of 
NORAD on the morning of 9/11.

“The NORAD mission is threefold. 
NORAD’s first responsibility is to 
provide surveillance and control of 
the airspace covering North America, 
specifically the airspace of Canada 
and the United States. This mission 
is based on agreements between the 
two governments....

The second part of NORAD’s mission 
is to provide the NCAs [National 
Command Authorities] with tactical 
warning and attack assessment of 
an aerospace attack against North 
America. This information is 
essential to providing those in 
command with information to aid them 
in making decisions on how to respond 
to an attack against North America.

NORAD’s third responsibility is 
to provide an appropriate response to 
any form of an air attack. NORAD was 
created to provide a defense against 
the threat from air-breathing 
aircraft, specifically the threat from 
long-range bombers. However, over 
the years the threat has changed. 
Now NORAD must provide an appropriate 
response to a multitude of threats, 
to include the air-launched cruise 
missile (ALCM) and the sea-launched 
cruise missile (SLCM).” — NORAD AIR 

DEFENSE OVERVIEW; Northeast Parallel Architectures Center, 

Syracuse University, pre-1995 

The last two missions mentioned 
constitute NORAD’s “outward” 
search for hostile aircraft approaching 
the North American continent. 
NORAD’s first mission, however, 
tasks the agency to monitor and 
control all aircraft within the United 
States’ and Canada’s air space. This is 
what NORAD calls “air sovereignty”. 
Let’s take a closer look at what 
constitutes “air sovereignty”.

As reported by the General 
Accounting Office in 1994 (GAO/NSIAD-
94-76) “NORAD defines air sovereignty 
as providing surveillance and 
control of the territorial airspace, 
which includes:

1.intercepting and destroying 
uncontrollable air objects;

2.tracking hijacked aircraft;
3.assisting aircraft in distress;
4.escorting Communist civil 

aircraft; and
5.intercepting suspect aircraft, 

including counterdrug operations and 
peacetime military intercepts.”

“NORAD defines “sovereign 
airspace” as: the airspace over a 
nation’s territory, internal waters, 
and territorial seas. NORAD’s 
territorial seas extend 12 miles 
from the continental United States, 
Alaska, and Canada. Sovereign 
airspace above a nation’s territory 
is unlimited.” — NORAD AIR DEFENSE OVERVIEW; 

Northeast Parallel Architectures Center, Syracuse University, 

pre-1995.

Let’s examine further citations 
from the 1990s that detail NORAD’s 
true capabilities on 9/11.

The article NORAD: Air National 
Guard Manning Stations across the 

Country (National Guard Association 
of the United States, Sep. 1997) 
explains how NORAD’s six Battle 
Management and Command Centers 
identify commercial aircraft as these 
aircraft are being monitored flying 
through our air space, 

“Aircraft flying over our air space 
are monitored seven days a week, 24 
hours a day. Much of the identifying 
process is done by hand.

Flight plans from the Federal 
Aviation Administration (FAA) 
are compiled in logs and have to 
be manually searched to identify 
aircraft.”—(http://findarticles.com/p/articles/mi_

qa3731/is_199709/ai_n8766326.).
“The Air Operations Center 

(AOC) (also known as the Air 
Defense Operations Center – ADOC) 
maintains constant surveillance of 
North American airspace to prevent 
overflight by hostile aircraft. It 
tracks over 2.5 million aircraft 
annually. The ADOC collects 
and consolidates surveillance 
information on suspected drug-
carrying aircraft entering or 
operating within North America, 
and provides this information to 
counternarcotics agencies.” -- Cheyenne 

Mountain Complex; Federation of American Scientists, 1999 

(http://www.fas.org/nuke/guide/usa/c3i/cmc.htm).
“One ongoing mission of the Battle 

Management Center is to coordinate 
“air sovereignty” efforts, Monitoring 
every aircraft that enters  U.S. 
or Canadian airspace -- some 2.5 
million a year. NORAD is asked to 
investigate  aircraft that do not 
file flight plans, contact ground 
controllers or identify themselves 
with transponders.” -- Cheyenne Mountain: 

America’s underground watchtower; CNN Interactive, 1999 (http:

//www.cnn.com/SPECIALS/cold.war/experience/the.bomb/

route/01.cheyenne/).
“In 1998, Canada possesses 

the ability to detect, identify, 
and if necessary intercept 
aircraft over Canadian territory. 
The “Canadianisation” of NORAD 
operations over Canada is complete. 
Though we still rely heavily on 
the Americans for the Integrated 
Tactical Warning and Attack 
Assessment and mutual defense, we 
have successfully transitioned on at 
least one of the three core functions 
of NORAD [surveillance and control 
of sovereign airspace].” -- Canadian 
Aerospace Sovereignty: In Pursuit 
of a Comprehensive Capability, by 
Maj François Malo; Department of 
National Defence (Canada), 1998 
(www.globalsecurity.org/wmd/library/
news/canada/0056.htm).

According to the article “The 
Border Guards, NORAD: The Eyes 
and Ears of North America,” in 1996 
NORAD prepared and practiced

 “its charter through continuous 
training and a realistic exercise 
program. Probably the biggest of 
these exercises is Amalgam Warrior, 
which is held twice annually in 
the fall for the East Coast and in 
the spring for the West Coast. The 
five-day fall Amalgam Warrior put 
Americans and Canadians through their 
paces, challenging forces in three 
areas coinciding with the command’s 
aerospace warning, air sovereignty 
and air defense missions.

The exercise was conducted in 
real time with a fictitious world 
political scenario, which prompted 
NORAD forces to transition from a 

peacetime posture to a war-fighting 
stance. The threat escalated from 
tracking unknown aircraft, which 
filed bad flight plans or wandered 
off course, and in-flight emergencies 
[all four hijacked aircraft on 9/11 
were also in-flight emergencies] 
to terrorist aircraft attacks and 
large-scale bomber strike missions.”

How important is the “air 
sovereignty” mission to the Air Force? 
Colonel Dan Navin, special assistant 
to the commander of 1st Air Force in 
1997 speaks to this question when he 
commented, “…many say [it] is the 
most important job of the Air Force, 
and that is air sovereignty.”

In point of fact, not only was 
NORAD postured to look inward 
on the morning of 9/11, but not long 
after the “collapse” of the USSR 
NORAD’s inward mission — air 
sovereignty — had become the raison 
d’être for its continued existence. A 
NORAD strategy review emphasized 
a new justification for its core forces 
soon after the “demise” of the USSR 
— that of peacetime air sovereignty:

“The dramatically changed threat 
and . . .  development of post-Cold 
War defense policies suggest real 
possibilities for shifting NORAD’s 
focus from deterring massive nuclear 
attack to defending both nations 
[Canada and the United States] by 
maintaining air sovereignty ... .  The 
size of the core force would equate to 
that required to perform the peacetime 
Air Sovereignty mission.”

By the mid-1990s the shift in 
NORAD’s focus was complete 
according to the GAO:

“According to the Chairman 
[Chairman of the Joint Chiefs of 
Staff], the air defense force was 
structured to intercept the former 
Soviet Union’s long-range bomber 
force if it attacked over the North 
Pole.  Since that threat has largely 
disappeared, the United States no 
longer needs a dedicated continental 
air defense force, and the force 
has refocused its activity on the air 
sovereignty mission …” We learn 
that by 1995 NORAD had changed 
its priorities. NORAD’s main mission 
of defending the continent against a 
massive nuclear attack would now 
take a back seat to the less glamorous 
inward mission of air sovereignty.

As Commander-in-Chief, North 
American Aerospace Defense 
Command from August 1998 to 
February 2000, General Richard 
Myers would have known that 
NORAD’s mission included 
surveillance and control of the 
territorial air space within the United 
States. Therefore when General Myers 
told the 9/11 Commission in response 
to NORAD’s mission, “I can’t 
answer the hypothetical. It’s more 
- it’s the way that we were directed 
to posture, looking outward” he either 
knowingly committed perjury, or he 
is indicating that someone above 
him “directed” that NORAD stand-
down.  Either way, the United States 
Department of Justice had the duty 
to challenge General Richard Myers 
and determine who gave such orders 
or why he committed perjury.

I now understand why so many 
of us in the 9/11 Truth Movement 
seemed to remember that before 
9/11 NORAD was tasked with 
more than just “looking outward.” 
It’s because before 9/11 the media 
and the government (including 
the militaries of both the United 
States and Canada), told us that 
one of NORAD’s responsibilities 
was surveillance and control of the 
territorial airspace above us.

The questions remain. Where was 
NORAD on 9/11?  If they truly failed 
in their mission so badly on 9/11, why 
was no one fired or reprimanded?

Dean Jackson is a writer and 9/11 researcher 
in Washington, DC.  His website,  DNotice.org 
provides rigorous analysis of major issues 
concerning government malfeasance.

Where Was NORAD on 9/11?
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BY GEORGEWASHINGTON

Bestselling Pulitzer prize-winning journalist 
Ron Suskind has revealed that the White 
House ordered the CIA to forge and backdate 
a document falsely linking Iraq with Muslim 
terrorists and 9/11... and that the CIA complied 
with those instructions and in fact created the 
forgery, which was then used to justify war 
against Iraq.

Suskind also revealed that the “Bush 
administration had information from a top 
Iraqi intelligence official ‘that there were 
no weapons of mass destruction in Iraq 
– intelligence they received in plenty of time 
to stop an invasion.’ ”

This is a stunning revelation in its own right. 
But what does it say about the government’s 
claims that 9/11 was an attack by Muslim 
extremists which the US government could 
not have anticipated?

Well, if the White House ordered the CIA 
to forge documents falsely implicating the 
people against which they wanted to wage 
war (Iraqis), and falsely linking supposed 
al Qaeda terrorists with someone they had 
no connection with (Saddam Hussein), is it 
possible that a similar thing occurred as to 
who carried out 9/11?

Let’s take a look:
    • The flight manuals and other evidence 

supposedly “accidentally” left behind by the 
terrorists were in fact planted. For example, the 
Pulitzer prize-winning reporter who uncovered 
the Iraq prison torture scandal and the My 
Lai massacre in Vietnam (Sy Hersch) wrote: 
“Many of the investigators believe that some 
of the initial clues that were uncovered about 
the terrorists’ identities and preparations, such 
as flight manuals, were meant to be found. A 
former high-level intelligence official told me, 
‘Whatever trail was left was left deliberately 
-- for the FBI to chase’”

    • The top expert on Osama Bin Laden 
has said that Bin Laden’s “confession” video 
is fake.

And imagine if a piece of evidence could 
not be authenticated according to basic 
science. For example, let’s say an apparent 
confession note was found at an arson crime 
scene where the entire building had been 
turned to fine ash particles and nothing else 
survived. That would raise suspicions, right?

Well, a passport from one of the alleged 

hijackers was “found” a couple of blocks from 
the Twin Towers. And yet the government 
claims that the areas inside the Twin Towers 
where planes crashed were infernos so hot that 
they caused the collapse of the massive steel 
cores in the center of the towers. Indeed, the 
passport-owner’s hijacked plane was allegedly 
almost completely lodged in the building’s 
core. How could the passport have survived 
and ended up a couple of blocks away?

And if the above-described documents were 
in fact forged, isn’t that strong evidence that 
elements of the US government actually aided 
and abetted the 9/11 attack? For example, the 
“initial clues that were uncovered about the 
terrorists’ identities and preparations, such 
as flight manuals,” had to have been planted 
before or immediately after the 9/11 attacks.

For those still skeptical about the possibility 
that the government intentionally created false 
evidence, please remember that NORAD 
intentionally lied about what happened 
on 9/11; indeed, the co-chairs of the 9/11 
Commission said that the 9/11 Commissioners 
knew that military officials misrepresented the 
facts to the Commission, and the Commission 
considered recommending criminal charges 
for such false statements.

And remember that the government 
intentionally and falsely linked Muslims with 
the anthrax attacks, when it was obvious that 
the attacks came from white Americans.

At the very least, isn’t it likely that the 
White House instructed the intelligence 
agencies and the 9/11 Commission to ignore 
any evidence which contradicted the narrative 
that would justify wars in the Middle East 
(euphemistically called “the war on terror”) 
- that 9/11 was carried out solely by Arabs?

In connection with Iraq, Suskind writes 
that “the Bush administration had information 
from a top Iraqi intelligence official ‘that there 
were no weapons of mass destruction in Iraq 
– intelligence they received in plenty of time 
to stop an invasion.’” And an ex-CIA official 
confirms that evidence that there were no 
WMDs in Iraq was ignored.

In connection with 9/11 itself, obstruction 
of an accurate assessment is equally clear.

George Washington is a lawyer and 9/11 researcher. 
georgewashington.blogspot.com

What the Iraq Forgery Says About 9/11

the consequences:  two unnecessary wars, 
hundreds of billions spent; tens of thousands 
killed; our Constitutional rights trampled.  But 
what really happened, and who really did it?

Within hours we were told the story 
of Osama Bin Laden and his 19 Arab 
disciples who hijacked four planes and flew 
unchallenged around US airspace for almost 
90 minutes.  On three of the planes, they 
pulled stunning flight maneuvers beyond the 
ability of even expert pilots, causing damage 
to their targets so severe as to violate the laws 
of physics.  However, this story breaks down 
when we are confronted with the facts.

The following verifiable facts have been 
established from publicly available evidence, 
including mainstream news sources.  Here 
are only a few of many incongruities in the 
official story:

Air Force fighter jets trained to intercept 
hijacked planes within minutes were not 
deployed.  “The defense of  US airspace 
on 9/11 was not conducted in accord with 
pre-existing training and protocols.”5  The 
interception of planes that have gone off 
course or lost radio contact is a  routine 
occurrence.  The Air Force “scrambles” jets 
50 to 60 times a year on such calls.  Where 
were they on 9/11?

Multiple “war games” simulating plane 
hijackings were being conducted on 9/11, 
confusing air traffic controllers and causing 
the delay and ineffectiveness of US air 
defense.6  The exercises were under the 
authority of Vice President Dick Cheney,7 and 
there is sworn testimony of a military “stand-
down” order given by Cheney.8  Many of the 
“war games” scenarios closely matched the 
actual attacks in “real time.”  Drills included 
“live-fly” hijacking, planes crashing into 
buildings and included injecting false “blips” 
into air traffic control radar.

FBI field agents who reported suspicious 
Arabs in flight schools were ordered by their 
superiors not to investigate.9  None of the FBI 
supervisors who ordered the investigations 
stopped were ever questioned, investigated, 
reprimanded or fired.  Why?

Of the 19 Arab hijackers named, several 
were reported still alive after 9/1110; others 
had been under the careful watch of US 
government agents for years and had trained 
at CIA-operated flight schools.11

Alleged Flight 77 hijacker Hani Hanjour, 
who “had trouble controlling and landing the 
single-engine Cessna 172,”12 supposedly flew 
a 757 jumbo jet into the Pentagon in “a pivot 
so tight that it reminded observers of a fighter 
jet maneuver.”13  Why would he choose the 
relatively empty side of the Pentagon that was 
being renovated and reinforced, rather than the 
easier, more direct approach from the Potomac 
River into the offices of top military brass and 
Defense Secretary Rumsfeld?14

Demolition charges were detonated “floor 
by floor” in the Twin Towers, according to 
eyewitness firefighters.15  Their testimony has 
been ignored.  And now many of these first 
responders are dead or dying from breathing 
the contaminated air at Ground Zero.

“Engineers and other experts have been 
struggling to answer…how the buildings, 
designed to sustain a jet impact, completely 
collapsed.”  The massive steel core columns 
should not have weakened.  “The steel 
apparently melted away, but no fire in any of 
the buildings was believed to be hot enough to 
melt steel outright.”16

A third steel-framed skyscraper, World 
Trade Center 7, which was not even hit by a 

plane, “also collapsed for unknown reasons” 
in a few seconds.  Its steel beams also 
mysteriously “melted.”17

None of the points stated above have 
been thoroughly investigated, many have 
been tossed aside as unimportant or flat out 
ignored.

President Bush, after refusing for a year to 
appoint a 9/11 commission, “personally asked 
Senate Majority Leader Tom Daschle…to 
limit the congressional investigation,” as did 
Mr. Cheney earlier in “a rare call.”18  Why?

Bush and Cheney would later testify 
together, in secret, unrecorded and not under 
oath.  Why?  There has never been a transcript 
of their testimony.  Why?

The 2001 anthrax attacks, beginning a 
week after 9/11, were disguised as acts of 
Arab terrorism but were traced to an American 
“with high-ranking military intelligence 
connections.”19  After the Arab “terrorist” 
theory failed, the government tried to pin the 
crime on Steven Hatfill.  For years Hatfill had 
been at the center of the FBI’s investigation 
after being named a “person of interest”.  In 
2008 the government settled a lawsuit brought 
by Hatfill contending he was falsely accused 
and had been made a scapegoat for the 
crimes.  Hatfill was awarded $5.82 million.  
Shortly thereafter, the FBI closed the anthrax 
case after blaming it on a lone mad scientist 
who committed suicide before he could be 
indicted.

Among the targets of the anthrax letters 
were two leading US senators who opposed 
the pending USAPATRIOT Act.  Bush and 
Cheney claim they took the country to war to 
avenge the attacks of 9/11.  Yet that attack, the 
greatest crime in US history, has never had a 
criminal investigation and remains unproven 
and unsolved to this day

We are faced with the horrifying conclusion 
that 9/11 and the subsequent anthrax attacks 
were “false flag” operations,20 planned, 
executed, and covered up by individuals 
both inside and outside the US government.  
9/11 was a “new Pearl Harbor” carried out to 
win public support for the ensuing wars and 
occupation in the Middle East, toward the 
long-term goal of controlling the region and 
its resources.21

“Some are guilty; all are responsible.”
Rabbi Abraham Heschel (1907-1972)
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2. Without Precedent: The Inside Story of  the 9/11 Commission (New York: Knopf, 2006), p. 261
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9/11 : Seven Years Later
Are We Any Closer to the Truth?

incident.  It must be seen as part of a far larger 
campaign of deception which included the 
Judith Miller fabrications in the New York 
Times, the Dick Cheney whoppers unleashed 
on the Sunday talk shows and elsewhere, as 
well as the continuing deceptions emanating 
from neocons in the media.

The incident should also bring increased 
scrutiny to other pieces of “evidence” used 
to justify US war making including; the 
Niger yellowcake forgeries, the Osama 9/11 
“confession” tape supposedly “found” in 
Afghanistan in 2002, the “curveball” claptrap 
and much more.

Nor is the Bush administration alone in 
culpability for disseminating propaganda and 
lies in the buildup to war.  Congress members 
of both parties did their part as well.  

In particular John McCain and Joe 
Lieberman were staunch supporters of Ahmed 
Chalabi and co-sponsors of the bill to fund 
Chalabi’s Iraqi National Congress front group 

to the tune of 100 million dollars. McCain, 
among others in Congress, repeated without 
reservation that Saddam Hussein threatened 
the US with WMD, in spite of the fact that he 
had read the classified version of the October 
2002 National Intelligence Estimate (NIE) 
on Iraq, which concluded that Iraq was not 
an imminent threat to the US.  A conclusion, 
by the way, that was scrubbed from the 
unclassified version of the report. 

The fabrication and promotion of the 
Habbush letter would seem to be a clear 
violation of laws prohibiting government 
propaganda directed at the American 
electorate.  The effort to forge a paper trail for 
the Iraq war deceptions also provides evidence 
that, contrary to administration claims that 
intelligence was mistaken; the administration 
intentionally misled the American people to 
justify the illegal invasion.

Matt Sullivan is the editor and publisher of the Rock 
Creek Free Press in Washington, DC.

White House Ordered Fabricated Evidence

will be referred to hereinafter as “Smitty,” 
told interrogators that Baghdadi was invented 
by Abu Ayyub al-Masri, aka Abu Hamza al-
Muhajer, hereinafter referred to as “Jimbo.”

According to Smitty, Jimbo invented 
Baghdadi to create the impression among Iraqis 
that al Qaeda is a nationalistic group in Iraq 
when, in fact, the Islamic State was a Sunni 
Muslim insurgent group run by an Egyptian, 
who hired an Iraqi actor to read statements from 
the fictional al-Baghdadi.

Well, it’s good to have all that straight.
If you’re confused, feel the love. Confusion 

is the coin of the kingdom in Iraq, an always-
reliable weapon made sharper by cyber-
technology and alphabet-exhausting names.

Whatever else Baghdadi may or may not have 
done during his fake life leading up to his fake 
capture and fake death, he has effectively killed 
comedy. How do you satirize satire? How do 
you parody a parody? How do you caricature?

In a war theater of the absurd, where war is 
waged by actors pretending to speak for fictional 
leaders, does the world die laughing?

Given that al-Baghdadi wasn’t real and his 
organization existed in cyberspace, a cynic 
might be tempted to ask: If there’s no Islamic 
State of Iraq except in cyberspace, is there also 
no al Qaeda?

If there’s no al-Baghdadi, is there no Osama 
bin Laden?... 

High Ranking
Al Qaeda Leader   

Never Existed

at only 1700 F. 
Collapse of the three towers, he said, 

“manifested many standard features of the kind 
of controlled demolition known as implosion, 
such as: sudden onset; straight-down collapse; 
collapse at virtually free-fall speed, indicating 
the lower floors were offering no resistance; 
total collapse, indicating that the massive steel 
columns in the core of each building had been 
broken into many pieces; the production of 
molten metal, and the concurrence of multiple 
explosions.”

 “Dozens of people, including journalists, 
police officers, WTC employees, emergency 
medical workers, and fire-fighters reported 
hearing explosions in the Twin Towers,” 
Griffin writes. One fire captain said he heard 
a series of explosions from the top floor down, 
one after another, “boom, boom, boom.” 
And a paramedic described them as akin to a 
“professional demolition where they set the 
charges on certain floors and then you hear 
‘Pop, pop, pop, pop.” 

 “Complete collapses of steel-frame high-
rise buildings have never been brought about 
by fire plus externally caused structural 
damage,” Griffin tells Tikkun readers. “Such 
collapses have only been caused by explosives 
used in controlled demolitions.”

If you wonder how saboteurs could plant 
explosives in the three WTC towers without 
being detected, Griffin notes on Web site 
911truth.com that President Bush’s brother 
Marvin and his cousin Wirt Walker III “were 
both principals in the company in charge of 
security for WTC.” The firm, Securacom, also 
handled security at United Airlines, whose 
flights struck WTC.

Among Griffin’s charges, the most startling 
may be that bin Laden, who was already one 
of America’s “most wanted” criminals, was 
treated in July, 2001 — two months before 
9/11 — in the American Hospital in Dubai, 
and visited by the local CIA agent. Does 
this explain why bin Laden was not caught 
and perhaps never will be? Is it possible this 
“renegade” from a prominent Saudi Arabian 
family with long ties to President Bush Sr. is in 
fact a fall guy whose alleged crimes Bush used 
as an excuse to invade Afghanistan?

Congress needs to conduct a real 
investigation of 9/11. It may not only uncover 
ample grounds for impeachment but for 
criminal prosecution. Given GWB’s track 
record for illegal crimes, treason cannot be 
ruled out. 

Sherwood Ross is a Miami-based columnist who covers 
military and political subjects. 
Reach him at: sherwoodr1@yahoo.com. 

Crimes Suggest Complicity 
Do Bush’s Subsequent Crimes Suggest Complicity In 9/11?

apologized to the Calvo family, for the raid that 
traumatized the family and killed their black 
Labrador retrievers. In fact Chief High pointedly 
refused to apologize for the police action and 
refuses to admit that they did anything wrong 
in the raid. As police chief Melvin C. High 
was quoted in the Washington Post Aug. 6:

“In some quarters, this has been viewed 
as a flawed police operation and an attack on 
the mayor, which it is not. This was about an 
address, this was about a name on a package 
. . . and, in fact, our people did not know 
that this was the home of the mayor and his 
family until after the fact.”

Not only did the police not know who 
lived in the house, nor have the proper 
warrant, and didn’t show the warrant they did 
have (as required by law) before entry, it now 
is admitted that the police were well aware 
that drugs were being shipped to innocent 
people.  But Chief High insists it was not 
flawed police work.  [It is interesting to note 
that the Chief announced his resignation 
between the time of the botched raid and the 
s**t hitting the fan.]

Calvo has called on the US Justice 
Department’s Civil Rights Division to 
investigate the raid and other similar actions by 
Prince George’s law enforcement.  

The FBI has opened an investigation into 
the actions of the county police officers.  
Special Agent Richard Wolf, a spokesman 
for the FBI’s Baltimore field office, said the 
agency has opened a civil rights investigation 
at the request of Calvo. The investigation will 
monitor the internal PG County Police probe 
that has begun into the conduct of the raid.

Prince George’s County police later arrested 
two men involved in a scheme to transport 
marijuana.  Once packages were dropped off by 
a delivery man, a suspect would pick them up — 
with the addressee oblivious to the plot.  Police 
seized half a dozen packages that contained 
about 417 pounds of marijuana, including the 
32 pounds delivered to Tomsic, the Associated 
Press reported.

The use of SWAT teams and military style 
combat tactics has become too common in what 
should be routine police work.  The attitude that 
anyone whose name appears on a warrant is 
already guilty has taken the place of “innocent 
until proven guilty in a court of law.”  Why 
didn’t the SWAT team know the house belonged 
to the Mayor of Berwyn Heights?  Why didn’t 
they contact the local police authorities before 
they made the raid?  Why did they kick in the 
door instead of simply knocking?  If the Prince 
George’s police knew that this scheme involved 
innocent people why did they use such brutal 
tactics? And finally, would we have even heard 
about the botched raid if it had not been the 
home of the wealthy  white mayor of the town?

Elaine Sullivan is the health editor at the Rock Creek 
Free Press in Washington, DC

Police Raid Mayor’s 
Home, Shoot Dogs
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History’s Lessons

BY RICHARD C. COOK
Dr. Ron Paul, a Republican candidate for 
the 2008 presidential nomination, is not the 
fi rst US politician to point to the abuses of 
the Federal Reserve System and call for its 
abolishment. Similar pleas to get rid of the 
Fed were made by Reps. Wright Patman 
(1893-1976) and Henry B. Gonzales (1916-
2000), both Democratic congressmen from 
Texas and chairmen of the House Banking 
Committee.

Few recall, however, how controversial 
the Fed was when it was fi rst proposed 
and then maneuvered through a recessing 
Congress just before Christmas 1913. Rep. 
Charles Lindbergh, Sr., (R-MN) and father of 
the future aviator, called the Federal Reserve 
Act “the worst legislative crime of the ages.”

But the strongest opposition came later, 
during the Great Depression. The source 
was Rep. Louis T. McFadden, a Republican 
representative from Pennsylvania who, as a 
former bank cashier and president, knew the 
fi nancial system intimately.

McFadden was born in Granville Center, 
Bradford County, Pennsylvania, on July 
25, 1876, just three weeks after the nation 
celebrated its centennial at the Philadelphia 
Exposition. He graduated from Warner’s 
Commercial College in Elmira, New York, 
and went to work at the First National Bank 
of Canton, PA, in 1892.

McFadden was elected to Congress in 1914 
and served until 1934. Though a Republican, 
he moved to impeach President Herbert 
Hoover in 1932 and introduced a resolution to 
bring conspiracy charges against the Board of 
Governors of the Federal Reserve.

He also made a 25-minute speech on the 
House fl oor accusing the Federal Reserve of 
deliberately causing the Depression. At the 
time, the chairman of the Federal Reserve 
Board was Eugene Meyer, who resigned 
after Franklin D. Roosevelt was inaugurated 
as president in 1933 and purchased the 
Washington Post at a bankruptcy auction.

Later in 1933, McFadden introduced House 
Resolution No. 158, Articles of Impeachment 
for the Secretary of the Treasury, two assistant 
Secretaries of the Treasury, the Board of 
Governors of the Federal Reserve, and the 
offi cers and directors of its twelve regional 
banks. This was McFadden’s political swan 
song. In the election of 1934, he lost his 
reelection bid to a Democrat by 561 votes.

Let’s fast forward to 2008. We are in the 
early stages of an economic collapse that 
Nouriel Roubini, professor of economics 
at the NYU Stern School of Business, calls 
“the worst fi nancial crisis since the Great 
Depression.”

Once again, the Federal Reserve is 
implicated, this time for having enabled the 
creation of gigantic investment bubbles in 
home mortgages, commercial real estate, 
equity funds, hedge funds, and derivatives 
that are now bursting. Mayhem is now 
starting to be sown within the producing 
economy of working men and women after 
having wreaked devastation on Wall Street 
and within the banking industry, despite 
massive Federal Reserve bailouts over the 
past year.

The chief culprit would appear to be Alan 
Greenspan, chairman of the Federal Reserve 
from 1987 to 2006, who presided not only 
over the ongoing subprime mortgage fi asco, 
but previously over the dot.com bubble of the 
1990s. This blew up when the stock market 
crashed in 2000-2001, obliterating $6 trillion 
of investor wealth.

The subprime mortgage confl agration 
of the 2000s was ignited by an orgy of 
application fraud that commenced just 
after George W. Bush became president. 

According to former New York Governor 
Eliot Spitzer, the investigation of this fraud by 
state attorneys-general was blocked by Bush’s 
Treasury Department.

Perhaps Louis T. McFadden was onto 
something. After his premature death, his 
words faded into history as he was derided 
for being anti-Semitic when he said such 

things as, “America has to choose between 
God and the money changers who have 
unlawfully taken our gold and lawful 
money into their possession.” Today he is 
dismissed, sneeringly, as “one of the heroes 
of the Federal Reserve conspiracy theorists.” 
(Edward Flaherty, PublicEye.org)

But maybe McFadden said some things 
that are still worth listening to. In his June 10, 
1932, address on the House fl oor, he declared, 
as reported in the Congressional Record:

“Mr. Chairman, we have in this country 
one of the most corrupt institutions the world 
has ever known. I refer to the Federal Reserve 
Board and the Federal Reserve banks. The 
Federal Reserve Board, a Government 
board, has cheated the Government of the 
United States out of enough money to pay 
the national debt. The depredations and the 
iniquities of the Federal Reserve Board and 
the Federal Reserve banks acting together 
have cost this country enough money to pay 
the national debt several times over. This evil 
institution has impoverished and ruined the 
people of the United States, has bankrupted 
itself, and has practically bankrupted our 
Government. It has done this through defects 
of the law under which it operates, through 
the maladministration of that law by the 
Federal Reserve Board, and through the 
corrupt practices of the moneyed vultures 
who control it.”

Remember, this was a former bank 
president and member of the Republican 
Party speaking! McFadden added:

“From the Atlantic to the Pacifi c our 
country has been ravaged and laid waste 
by the evil practices of the Federal Reserve 
Board and the Federal Reserve banks and the 
interests which control them ... This is an era 
of economic misery, and for the conditions 
that caused that misery, the Federal Reserve 
Board and the Federal Reserve banks are fully 
liable.”

Further statements by McFadden in 
his House speeches may be found at: http:
//home.hiwaay.net/~becraft/mcfadden.html 
As we watch today with dismay while the 
US dollar shrinks in value and foreign 
investors continue to buy huge quantities 
of federal government debt, we might recall 
McFadden’s words from a 1934 speech:

“The Fed Note is essentially unsound. It 
is the worst currency and the most dangerous 
that this Country has ever known. When the 
proponents of the act saw that the Democratic 
doctrine would not permit them to let the 
proposed banks issue the new currency as 
bank notes, they should have stopped at that. 

They should not have foisted that kind of 
currency, namely, an asset currency, on the 
United States Government. They should not 
have made the Government [liable on the 
private] debts of individuals and corporations, 
and, least of all, on the private debts of 
foreigners.”

Of the twelve regional Federal Reserve 
Banks, or corporations, McFadden said in 
words that also prefi gured the life-and-death 
stranglehold the Fed has over every aspect of 
the US economy today:

“The imperial power of elasticity of the 
public currency is wielded exclusively by the 
central Corporations owned by the banks [i.e., 
the regional Federal Reserve Banks.] This is 
a life and death power over all local banks 
and all business. It can be used to create or 
destroy prosperity, to ward off or cause 
stringencies and panics. By making money 
artifi cially scarce, interest rates throughout 
the Country can be arbitrarily raised and the 
bank tax on all business and cost of living 
increased for the profi t of the banks owning 
these regional central banks, and without the 
slightest benefi t to the people. The twelve 
Corporations together cover and monopolize 
and use for private gain every dollar of the 
public currency and all public revenue of 
the United States. Not a dollar can be put 
into circulation among the people by their 
Government, without the consent of and on 
terms fi xed by these twelve private money 
trusts.”

In language that suited the 1930s but is 
also prophetic of our own disjointed times, 
McFadden summarized his outrage by 
saying:

“Are you going to let these thieves get 
off scot free? Is there one law for the looter 
who drives up to the door of the United States 
Treasury in his limousine and another for 
the United States Veterans who are sleeping 
on the fl oor of a dilapidated house on the 
outskirts of Washington?”

McFadden may have paid with his life 
for his outspokenness. After he lost his 
congressional seat in 1934, he remained in 
the public eye as a vigorous opponent of 
the fi nancial system; that is, until his sudden 
death on October 3, 1936, of a “dose” of 
“intestinal fl ue” after attending a banquet in 
New York City.

Reporting his death in its October 14 issue, 
Pelley’s Weekly stated that it “became known 
among his intimates that he had suffered two 
[previous] attacks against his life. The fi rst 
attack came in the form of two revolver shots 
fi red at him from ambush as he was alighting 
from a cab in front of one of the Capital 
hotels. Fortunately both shots missed him, the 
bullets burying themselves in the structure of 
the cab.”

Next, ‘He became violently ill after 
partaking of food at a political banquet at 
Washington. His life was only saved from 
what was subsequently announced as a 
poisoning by the presence of a physician 
friend at the banquet, who at once procured a 
stomach pump and subjected the congressman 
to emergency treatment.’

Evidently the third time the assassins 
succeeded, and the most articulate critic of the 
Federal Reserve and the fi nanciers’ control of 
the nation was dead. He was 60 years old.

Richard C. Cook is a former US federal government 
analyst, whose career included service with the 
US Civil Service Commission, the Food and Drug 
Administration, the Carter White House, NASA, and 
the US Treasury Department.  His book on monetary 
reform entitled We Hold These Truths: The Hope of 
Monetary Reform will be published soon by Tendril 
Press.  A new economics website at www.RealSusta
inableLiving.com is upcoming with partner/author 
Susan Boskey. e-mail: EconomicSanity@gmail.com .

McFadden’s Attempts to Abolish the Federal Reserve System

Louis T. McFadden (1876-1936)

were polygraph tests.  Where passing a polygraph 
test was enough to exclude certain people, it did 
not exclude Ivins.

Ivins’ car, work locker, safe deposit box and 
house were thoroughly swabbed for anthrax 
spores multiple times over the space of years; 
not a single spore was found, although the killer 
anthrax was so highly weaponized that it behaved 
like a gas and was very diffi cult to contain.  

None of the materials in the mailings were 
found at his house:  not the tape, the envelopes, 
nor the pen used to write the letters.  There isn’t 
one piece of evidence placing him in New Jersey 
at the time the letters were mailed:  not a gas 
receipt, restaurant receipt, nor a witness.    

On August 3, 2008, Glen Greenwald wrote in 
Salon:  

“It is so vital to emphasize that not a shred of 
evidence has yet been presented that the now-
deceased Bruce Ivins played any role in the 
anthrax attacks, let alone that he was the sole or 
even primary culprit. Nonetheless, just as they did 
with Steven Hatfi ll, the media (with some notable 
and important exceptions) are reporting this case 
as though the matter is resolved.” 

Bruce Ivins: juggler, Red Cross volunteer, 
pianist

Jeff Taylor’s case against Ivins rests heavily 
on claims that Ivins was mentally ill.   If Ivins was 
truly so unhinged, why was he allowed to work 
with toxic substances?  His security clearance 
was never revoked. 

Certainly a brilliant homicidal serial killer 
who is determined to avoid detection would 
immediately get rid of the Ames strain with the 
incriminating genotype in his fl ask, if he had 
used it to make weaponized powder and kill fi ve 
people.  Yet seven years later, the same genotype 
was still in Ivins’ lab!

The DOJ and FBI ask us to believe that Ivins 
launched the attacks because his vaccine research 
was not going well and he feared he might lose 
his job.  It’s just not a plausible motivation.  

In 2003, Ivins received the Decoration for 
Exceptional Civilian Service—the highest award 
given to the Defense Department’s civilian employees.  
He had been a respected scientist at USAMRIID for 
35 years and had a very secure job.  

Ivins had been married for 33 years.  He 
played keyboard at his local church, he was a 
member of the American Red Cross, an avid 
juggler and founder of the Frederick Jugglers.  He 
also played keyboards in a Celtic band and would 
often compose and play songs for coworkers who 
were moving to new jobs. 

The FBI focused on him as a probable fall 
guy in 2006, and for two years was all over 
him, repeatedly questioning him, searching his 
home, car and offi ce, and confronting him and 
his family in public with accusations that he had 
“killed people.” His daughter was shown pictures 
of dead anthrax victims and told “your father did 
this.”  His son was promised $2.5 million and a 
sports car of his choice if he would implicate his 
father in the anthrax attacks.   Who among us 
would not resort to drink, or drugs, or fantasies of 
revenge under those circumstances?

Who had the expertise to weaponize 
anthrax?

William C. Patrick III, and Ken Alibek. 
William Patrick was the originator of the 

fi rst anthrax weaponization process.  He has fi ve 
patents on anthrax weaponization and wrote a 
paper in 1999 setting out exactly what an anthrax 
attack by mail would look like.  

Patrick’s scenario is very similar to what 
actually happened in 2001.  For example, he 
suggests no more than 2.5 grams of anthrax per 
envelope; the envelopes contained two grams.  
One footnote in his paper reveals “we now have 
the ability to purify to one trillion spores per 
gram.”  William Patrick was a consultant to the 
CIA, Battelle, the Army, the  DIA and the FBI on 
bio-weapons.  

Ken Alibek headed up the Soviet bio-weapon 
programs until defecting to the USA in 1992.  He 
brought with him the technology that was key in 
the anthrax attacks:  using polymerized glass to 
attach silica to the anthrax spores.  He worked for 
Battelle Memorial Institute in the late 90s.

These men had to have been instrumental 
in developing the technology used in the 2001 
anthrax attacks.

Who can control the FBI, DOJ and the 
media?

The signifi cance of the railroading of the 
deceased Ivins cannot be overstated.  This 
railroading is not a matter of incompetence.  In 
detail after detail, the joint FBI-DOJ prosecution 
deliberately lies, evades and obfuscates in a 
desperate attempt to pin blame somewhere and 
close the case.  (A transcript of the entire August 
6 news conference is available on npr.org, titled 
“DOJ News Conference On Bruce Ivins.”)

US Attorney Jeff Taylor states at the news 
conference that the envelopes used in the attacks 
were “very likely sold at a post offi ce in the 
Frederick, Md. area,” and that Ivins had a post 
offi ce box there.  This is another outright lie.  
Taylor’s own application for a search warrant 
stated:

“…envelopes with printing defects, identical 
to printing defects identifi ed on the envelopes 
utilized in the anthrax attacks during the fall of 
2001, were collected from the Fairfax Main post 
offi ce in Fairfax, Virginia, and the Cumberland 
and Elkton post offi ces in Maryland…”

Taylor and his supervisors at DOJ must be 
hoping that no one will notice or care that they are 
blatantly lying about their evidence against Ivins. 

Reading the transcript, it is striking how often 
Jeff Taylor and Joseph Persichini refuse to answer 
questions.  They either refer reporters to the 
Department of Defense (which is not holding a 
news conference) or to the documents they have 
been given.  

When asked when their all new, ground-
breaking DNA research would be published, 
Taylor replies “I’m not going to comment on 
(that).”  When asked a direct question about how 
many others were investigated other than Ivins, 
Taylor replies “I’m not going to get into the 
details.”  Not only does he not get into the details, 
he doesn’t even give us the broad strokes.  When 
asked how he can be so sure that there wasn’t 
another person involved, Taylor replies:

“The evidence I described in my statement, 
and that I’ve described throughout this question-
and-answer period, as I said, led us to conclude 
that Dr. Ivins is the person who committed this 
crime. We are confi dent, based on the evidence 
we have, that we could prove this case beyond a 
reasonable doubt.”

In other words, he doesn’t answer. 
Honest citizens must ask themselves:  who 

are the FBI and DOJ protecting?  Who has the 
ability to control and corrupt an investigation of 
this importance?  And why, after sitting through 
a news conference that is obviously a hastily 
constructed web of lies, have so many journalists 
dutifully reported the story just as instructed by 
Jeff Taylor?

We no longer have a working government 
in the United States.  What we have are 
functionaries in various departments—Congress, 
FBI, DOJ, CIA—who take their orders from 
the corporations who make vast sums of money 
waging war and selling vaccines.  Their infl uence 
extends to the major media outlets who control 
the fl ow of information to the American people.  
We are increasingly enslaved, manipulated and 
murdered by these corporations, and very few of 
us seem to realize it.

Sheila Casey is a DC based journalist.  Her work 
has appeared in The Denver Post, Buzz Flash, 
Common Dreams and Dissident Voice.  She blogs at 
www.sheilacasey.com. Barry Kissin is an attorney/peace 
activist based in Frederick, MD, home of Fort Detrick.

Anthrax Attacks Came from 
CIA Battelle Program

Americanized Georgian army fl eeing in fear.
Having failed with weapons, the Bush 

Regime now unleashes the rhetoric.  The 
White House is warning Russia that failure 
to acquiesce to US hegemony could have a 
“signifi cant, long-term impact on relations 
between Washington and Moscow.”  

Do the morons who comprise the Bush 
Regime really not understand that short of 
a surprise nuclear attack on Russia there is 
nothing whatsoever the US can do to Moscow?

The Bush Regime owns no Russian currency 
that it can dump.  The Russians own US 
dollars.

The Bush Regime owns no Russian bonds 
that it can dump.  The Russians own US bonds.

The US can cut Russia off from no energy 
supplies.  Russia can cut America’s European 
allies off from energy.  

President Reagan negotiated the end of the 
cold war with Soviet President Gorbachev.,The 
neoconservatives, whom Reagan fi red and 
drove from his administration, were furious.  
The neocons had hoped to win the cold war, 
thereby establishing American hegemony.  

The Republican Establishment reestablished 
its hegemony under Bush 1st that it had lost to 

Ronald Reagan.  With this feat, intelligence was 
driven from the Republican Party.

The neocons engineered their comeback 
with the First Gulf War and their propaganda, 
pure lies, that Iraqi troops bayoneted Kuwait 
babies in hospitals.

The neocons made a further comeback 
with President Clinton, whom they convinced 
to bomb Serbia in order to permit separatist 
movements to become independent states 
dependent on America.  

With Bush 2nd, the neocons took over.  Their 
agenda, American world hegemony, includes 
Israeli hegemony in the Middle East.  

So far the schemes of these ignorant and 
dangerous ideologues have come a cropper. 
Iraq, formerly in the hands of secular Sunnis 
who were a check on Iran, is, after the American 
invasion and occupation, in the hands of 
religious Shi’ites allied with Iran.

In Afghanistan, the Taliban are resurgent, 
and a large NATO/US army there is unable to 
control the situation.

One consequence of the neocons’ Afghan 
war has been the loss of power of the American 
puppet president of Pakistan, a Muslim country 
armed with nuclear weapons. The puppet 
president now faces impeachment, and the 

Pakistani military has informed the Americans 
to stop conducting military operations in 
Pakistani territory.

The American puppets in Egypt and Jordan 
might be next to fall. 

In Iraq, the Shi’ites, having completed their 
ethnic cleansing of Sunnis from neighborhoods, 
have declared a cease fi re in order to contradict 
the US propaganda that American withdrawal 
would lead to a blood bath.  Negotiations on 
withdrawal dates are now underway between 
the Americans and the Iraqi government, which 
is no longer behaving like a puppet. 

Last year Hugo Chavez ridiculed Bush 
before the UN.  Russia’s Putin ridiculed Bush 
as Comrade Wolf.  

On August 12, 2008, Pravda ridiculed Bush, 
“Bush: Why don’t you shut up.”

Americans may think they are a superpower 
before whose presence the world trembles. But 
not the Russians.  

Those Americans stupid enough to think that 
America’s “superpower” insures its citizens 
from danger need to read the total contempt 
shown for President Bush in Pravda:

    “President Bush,
    Why don’t you shut up? In your statement 

on Monday regarding the legitimate actions 
of the Russian Federation in Georgia, you 
failed to mention  the war crimes perpetrated 
by Georgian military forces, which American 
advisors support, against Russian and Ossetian 
civilians

    “President Bush,
    Why don’t you shut up? Your faithful ally, 

Mikhail Saakashvili, was announcing a ceasefi re 

deal while his troops, with your advisors, were 
massing on Ossetia’s border, which they crossed 
under cover of night and destroyed Tskhinvali, 
targeting civilian structures just like your forces 
did in Iraq.

    “President Bush,
    Why don’t you shut up? Your American 

transport aircraft gave a ride home to thousands 
of Georgian soldiers from Iraq directly into the 
combat zone.

    “President Bush,
    Why don’t you shut up? How do you 

account for the fact that among the Georgian 
soldiers fl eeing the fi ghting yesterday you could 
clearly hear offi cers using American English 
giving orders to “Get back inside” and how do 
you account for the fact that there are reports 
of American soldiers among the Georgian 
casualties?

    “President Bush,
    Why don’t you shut up? Do you really 

think anyone gives any importance whatsoever 
to your words after 8 years of your criminal and 
murderous regime and policies? Do you really 
believe you have any moral ground whatsoever 
and do you really imagine there is a single 
human being anywhere on this planet who does 
not stick up his middle fi nger every time you 
appear on a TV screen?

    Do you really believe you have the right 
to give any opinion or advice after Abu Ghraib? 
After Guantanamo? After the massacre of 
hundreds of thousands of Iraqi citizens? After 
the torture by CIA operatives? 

    Do you really believe you have any right to 
make a statement on any point of international 

law after your trumped-up charges against Iraq 
and the subsequent criminal invasion?

    “President Bush,
    Why don’t you shut up? Suppose Russia 

for instance declares that Georgia has weapons 
of mass destruction? And that Russia knows 
where these WMD are, namely in Tblisi 
and Poti and north, south, east and west of 
there? And that it must be true because there 
is ‘magnifi cent foreign intelligenc’  such as 
satellite photos of milk powder factories and 
baby cereals producing chemical weapons and 
which are currently being ‘driven around the 
country in vehicles’? Suppose Russia declares 
for instance that ‘Saakashvili stiffed the world’ 
and it is ‘time for regime change’?

Nice and simple, isn’t it, President Bush?
“So, why don’t you shut up? Oh and by the 

way, send some more of your military advisors 
to Georgia, they are doing a sterling job. And 
they look all funny down the night sight, all 
green.”

The US is not a superpower.  It is a bankrupt 
farce run by imbeciles who were installed by 
stolen elections arranged by Karl Rove and 
Diebold.  It is a laughing stock, that ignorantly 
affronts and attempts to bully an enormous 
country equipped with tens of thousands of 
nuclear weapons.

Paul Craig Roberts was Assistant Secretary of the 
Treasury in the Reagan administration. He was 
Associate Editor of the Wall Street Journal editorial 
page and Contributing Editor of National Review. He is 
coauthor of The Tyranny of Good Intentions.  He can be 
reached at: PaulCraigRoberts@yahoo.com.

President Bush, Will You 
Please Shut Up?

Paul Craig Roberts from p. 3

Anthrax from p. 2
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911Truth.org has long been a central focus 
of the 911truth movement and has sponsored 
events and provided teaching and organizing 
materials to the 911Truth community.  Their 
extensive website, 911truth.org, regularly 
publishes news and research articles related 
to 9/11.  Articles posted on 911truth.org have 
the advantage of having been researched and 
verified by experienced and knowledgable 
members of the 911Truth community.  The 
following article is available on the 911truth.org 
website.

THE DAY ITSELF - EVIDENCE OF 
COMPLICITY

1) AWOL Chain of Command
a. It is well documented that the officials 

topping the chain of command for response to 
a domestic attack - George W. Bush, Donald 
Rumsfeld, Richard Myers, Montague Winfield 
- all found reason to do something else during 
the actual attacks, other than assuming their 
duties as decision-makers.

b. Who was actually in charge? Dick 
Cheney, Richard Clarke, Norman Mineta and 
the 9/11 Commission directly conflict in their 
accounts of top-level response to the unfolding 
events, such that several (or all) of them must 
be lying.

2) Air Defense Failures
a. The US air defense system failed to 

follow standard procedures for responding to 
diverted passenger flights.

b. Timelines: The various responsible 
agencies - NORAD, FAA, Pentagon, USAF, as 
well as the 9/11 Commission - gave radically 
different explanations for the failure (in some 
cases upheld for years), such that several 
officials must have lied; but none were held 
accountable.

c. Was there an air defense standdown?
3) Pentagon Strike
How was it possible the Pentagon was hit 

1 hour and 20 minutes after the attacks began? 
Why was there no response from Andrews 
Air Force Base, just 10 miles away and home 
to Air National Guard units charged with 
defending the skies above the Nation’s Capital? 
How did Hani Hanjour, a man who failed as 
a Cessna pilot on his first flight in a Boeing, 
execute a difficult aerobatic maneuver to strike 
the Pentagon? Why did the attack strike the 
just-renovated side, which was largely empty 
and opposite from the side housing the high 
command?

4) War Games
a. US military and other authorities planned 

or actually rehearsed defensive response to 
all elements of the 9/11 scenario during the 
year prior to the attack - including multiple 
hijackings, suicide crashbombings, and a strike 
on the Pentagon.

b. The multiple military war games planned 
long in advance and held on the morning 
of September 11th included scenarios of 
a domestic air crisis, a plane crashing into 
a government building, and a large-scale 
emergency in New York. If this was only an 
incredible series of coincidences, why did the 
official investigations avoid the issue? There is 
evidence that the war games created confusion 
as to whether the unfolding events were “real 
world or exercise.” Did wargames serve as 
the cover for air defense sabotage, and/or the 
execution of an “inside job?”

5) Flight 93
Did the Shanksville crash occur at 10:

06 (according to a seismic report) or 10:03 
(according to the 9/11 Commission)? Does 
the Commission wish to hide what happened 
in the last three minutes of the flight, and if so, 
why? Was Flight 93 shot down, as indicated by 
the scattering of debris over a trail of several 
miles?

THE DAY - POSSIBLE SMOKING GUNS
6) The Cell Phone Calls
Did cell phones work at 30,000 feet in 

2001? How many hijackings were attempted? 
How many flights were diverted?

7) Demolition Hypothesis
What caused the collapse of a third 

skyscraper, WTC 7, which was not hit by a 
plane? Were the Twin Towers and WTC 7 
brought down by explosives? (See “The Case 
for Demolitions,” the websites wtc7.net and 
911research.wtc7.net, and the influential article 
by physicist Steven Jones. See also items no. 16 
and 24, below.)

FOREKNOWLEDGE & THE ALLEGED 
HIJACKERS

8) What did officials know? How did they 
know it?

a. Multiple allied foreign agencies informed 
the US government of a coming attack in detail, 
including the manner and likely targets of the 
attack, the name of the operation (the “Big 

Wedding”), and the names of certain men later 
identified as being among the perpetrators.

b. Various individuals came into possession 
of specific advance knowledge, and some of 
them tried to warn the US prior to September 
11th.

c. Certain prominent persons received 
warnings not to fly on the week or on the day of 
September 11th.

9) Able Danger, Plus - Surveillance of 
Alleged Hijackers

a. The men identified as the 9/11 ringleaders 
were under surveillance for years beforehand, 
on the suspicion they were terrorists, by a 
variety of US and allied authorities - including 
the CIA, the US military’s “Able Danger” 
program, the German authorities, Israeli 
intelligence and others.

b. Two of the alleged ringleaders who were 
known to be under surveillance by the CIA also 
rented their apartment from a landlord who was 
an FBI asset in San Diego, but this is supposed 
to be yet another coincidence.

10) Obstruction of FBI Investigations 
prior to 9/11

A group of FBI officials in New York 
systematically suppressed field investigations 
of potential terrorists that might have uncovered 
the alleged hijackers - as the Moussaoui 
case once again showed. The stories of Sibel 
Edmonds, Robert Wright, Coleen Rowley 
and Harry Samit, the “Phoenix Memo,” 
David Schippers, the 1991 orders restricting 
investigations, the Bush administration’s order 
to back off the Bin Ladin family, the reaction 
to the “Bojinka” plot, and John O’Neil do 
not, when considered in sum, indicate mere 
incompetence, but high-level corruption and 
protection of criminal networks, including 
the network of the alleged 9/11 conspirators. 
(Nearly all of these examples were omitted 
from or relegated to fleeting footnotes in The 
9/11 Commission Report.)

11) Insider Trading
a. Unknown speculators allegedly used 

foreknowledge of the Sept. 11th events to 
profiteer on many markets internationally 
- including but not limited to “put options” 
placed to short-sell the two airlines, WTC 
tenants, and WTC re-insurance companies in 
Chicago and London.

b. In addition, suspicious monetary 
transactions worth hundreds of millions were 
conducted through offices at the Twin Towers 
during the actual attacks.

c. Initial reports on these trades were 
suppressed and forgotten, and only years later 
did the 9/11 Commission and SEC provide a 
partial, but untenable explanation for only a 
small number of transactions (covering only 
the airline put options through the Chicago 
Board of Exchange).

12) Who were the perpetrators?
a. Much of the evidence establishing who 

did the crime is dubious and miraculous: bags 
full of incriminating material that happened 
to miss the flight or were left in a van; the 
“magic passport” of an alleged hijacker, found 
at Ground Zero; documents found at motels 
where the alleged perpetrators had stayed days 
and weeks before 9/11.

b. The identities of the alleged hijackers 
remain unresolved, there are contradictions in 
official accounts of their actions and travels, 
and there is evidence several of them had 
“doubles,” all of which is omitted from official 
investigations.

c. What happened to initial claims by the 
government that 50 people involved in the 
attacks had been identified, including the 
19 alleged hijackers, with 10 still at large 
(suggesting that 20 had been apprehended)? 
www.chicagotribune.com/news/nationworld/
sns-worldtrade-50suspects,0,1825231.story

THE 9/11 COVER-UP, 2001-2006
13) Who Is Osama Bin Ladin?
a. Who judges which of the many conflicting 

and dubious statements and videos attributed to 
Osama Bin Ladin are genuine, and which are 
fake? The most important Osama Bin Ladin 
video (Nov. 2001), in which he supposedly 
confesses to masterminding 9/11, appears to 
be a fake. In any event, the State Department’s 
translation of it is fraudulent.

b. Did Osama Bin Ladin visit Dubai and 
meet a CIA agent in July 2001 (Le Figaro)? 
Was he receiving dialysis in a Pakistani 
military hospital on the night of September 10, 
2001 (CBS)?

c. Whether by Bush or Clinton; why is 
Osama always allowed to escape?

d. The terror network associated with Osama, 
known as the “data base” (al Qaeda), originated 
in the CIA-sponsored 1980s anti-Soviet jihad 
in Afghanistan. When did this network stop 
serving as an asset to covert operations by US 
intelligence and allied agencies? What were 
its operatives doing in Kosovo, Bosnia and 
Chechnya in the years prior to 9/11?

14) All the Signs of a Systematic 9/11 

Cover-up
a. Airplane black boxes were found at 

Ground Zero, according to two first responders 
and an unnamed NTSB official, but they were 
“disappeared” and their existence is denied in 
The 9/11 Commission Report.

b. US officials consistently suppressed and 
destroyed evidence (like the tapes recorded 
by air traffic controllers who handled the New 
York flights).

c. Whistleblowers (like Sibel Edmonds and 
Anthony Shaffer) were intimidated, gagged and 
sanctioned, sending a clear signal to others who 
might be thinking about speaking out.

d. Officials who “failed” (like Myers and 
Eberhard, as well as Frasca, Maltbie and 
Bowman of the FBI) were given promotions.

15) Poisoning New York
The White House deliberately pressured the 

EPA into giving false public assurances that the 
toxic air at Ground Zero was safe to breathe. 
This knowingly contributed to an as-yet 
unknown number of health cases and fatalities, 
and demonstrates that the administration 
considers the lives of American citizens to be 
expendable on behalf of certain interests.

16) Disposing of the Crime Scene
The rapid and illegal scrapping of the WTC 

ruins at Ground Zero disposed of almost all 
of the structural steel indispensable to any 
investigation of the collapse mechanics. (See 
also item no. 23, below.)

17) Anthrax
Mailings of weapons-grade anthrax - which 

caused a practical suspension of the 9/11 
investigations - were traced back to US military 
stock. Soon after the attacks began in October 
2001, the FBI approved the destruction of the 
original samples of the Ames strain, disposing 
of perhaps the most important evidence in 
identifying the source of the pathogens used in 
the mailings. Were the anthrax attacks timed to 
coincide with the Afghanistan invasion? Why 
were the letters sent only to media figures and 
to the leaders of the opposition in the Senate 
(who had just raised objections to the USA 
PATRIOT Act)?

18) The Stonewall
a. Colin Powell promised a “white paper” 

from the State Department to establish the 
authorship of the attacks by al Qaeda. This was 
never forthcoming, and was instead replaced by 
a paper from Tony Blair, which presented only 
circumstantial evidence, with very few points 
actually relating to September 11th.

b. Bush and Cheney pressured the (freshly-
anthraxed) leadership of the Congressional 
opposition into delaying the 9/11 investigation 
for months. The administration fought against 
the creation of an independent investigation for 
more than a year.

c. The White House thereupon attempted 
to appoint Henry Kissinger as the chief 
investigator, and acted to underfund and 
obstruct the 9/11 Commission.

19) A Record of Official Lies
a. “No one could have imagined planes into 

buildings” - a transparent falsehood upheld 
repeatedly by Rice, Rumsfeld and Bush.

b. “Iraq was connected to 9/11” - The most 
“outrageous conspiracy theory” of all, with the 
most disastrous impact.

20) Pakistani Connection - Congressional 
Connection

a. The Pakistani intelligence agency ISI, 
creator of the Taliban and close ally to both the 
CIA and “al Qaeda,” allegedly wired $100,000 
to Mohammed Atta just prior to September 
11th, reportedly through the ISI asset Omar 
Saeed Sheikh (later arrested for the killing 
of Wall Street Journal reporter Daniel Pearl, 
who was investigating ISI connections to “al 
Qaeda.”)

b. This was ignored by the congressional 
9/11 investigation, although the senator and 
congressman who ran the probe (Bob Graham 
and Porter Goss) were meeting with the ISI 
chief, Mahmud Ahmed, on Capitol Hill on the 
morning of September 11th.

c. About 25 percent of the report of the 
Congressional Joint Inquiry was redacted, 
including long passages regarding how the 
attack (or the network allegedly behind it) 
was financed. Graham later said foreign allies 
were involved in financing the alleged terror 
network, but that this would only come out in 
30 years.

21) Unanswered Questions and the 
“Final Fraud” of the 9/11 Commission:

a. The September 11th families who fought 
for and gained an independent investigation (the 
9/11 Commission) posed 400-plus questions, 
which the 9/11 Commission adopted as its 
roadmap. The vast majority of these questions 
were completely ignored in the Commission 
hearings and the final report.

b. The membership and staff of the 9/11 
Commission displayed awesome conflicts of 
interest. The families called for the resignation 
of Executive Director Philip Zelikow, a Bush 

administration member and close associate of 
“star witness” Condoleezza Rice, and were 
snubbed. Commission member Max Cleland 
resigned, condemning the entire exercise as a 
“scam” and “whitewash.”

c.The 9/11 Commission Report is notable 
mainly for its obvious omissions, distortions 
and outright falsehoods - ignoring anything 
incompatible with the official story, banishing 
the issues to footnotes, and even dismissing the 
still-unresolved question of who financed 9/11 
as being “of little practical significance.”

22) Crown Witnesses Held at Undisclosed 
Locations

The alleged masterminds of 9/11, Khalid 
Sheikh Mohamed (KSM) and Ramzi Binalshibh, 
are reported to have been captured in 2002 
and 2003, although one Pakistani newspaper 
said KSM was killed in an attempted capture. 
They have been held at undisclosed locations 
and their supposed testimonies, as provided in 
transcript form by the government, form much 
of the basis for The 9/11 Commission Report 
(although the Commission’s request to see 
them in person was denied). After holding them 
for years, why doesn’t the government produce 
these men and put them to trial?

23) Spitzer Redux
a. Eliot Spitzer, attorney general of New 

York State, snubbed pleas by New York 
citizens to open 9/11 as a criminal case 
(Justicefor911.org).

b. Spitzer also refused to allow his employee, 
former 9/11 Commission staff member Dietrich 
Snell, to testify to the Congress about his 
(Snell’s) role in keeping “Able Danger” entirely 
out of The 9/11 Commission Report.

24) NIST Omissions
After the destruction of the WTC structural 

steel, the official Twin Towers collapse 
investigation was left with almost no forensic 
evidence, and thus could only provide dubious 
computer models of ultimately unprovable 
hypotheses. It failed to even test for the 
possibility of explosives. (Why not clear this 
up?)

25) Radio Silence
The 9/11 Commission and NIST both 

allowed the continuing cover-up of how 
Motorola’s faulty radios, purchased by the 
Giuliani administration, caused firefighter 
deaths at the WTC - once again showing the 
expendability, even of the first responders.

26) The Legal Catch-22
a. Hush Money - Accepting victims’ 

compensation barred September 11th families 
from pursuing discovery through litigation.

b. Judge Hallerstein - Those who refused 
compensation to pursue litigation and discovery 
had their cases consolidated under the same 
judge (and as a rule dismissed).

27) Saudi Connections
a. The 9/11 investigations made light of the 

“Bin Ladin Airlift” during the no-fly period, 
and ignored the long-standing Bush family 
business ties to the Bin Ladin family fortune. (A 
company in which both families held interests, 
the Carlyle Group, was holding its annual 
meeting on September 11th, with George Bush 
Sr., James Baker, and two brothers of Osama 
Bin Ladin in attendance.)

b. The issue of Ptech.
28) Media Blackout of Prominent 

Doubters
The official story has been questioned 

and many of the above points were raised by 
members of the US Congress, retired high-
ranking officers of the US military, the three 
leading third-party candidates for President 
in the 2004 election, a member of the 9/11 
Commission who resigned in protest, a former 
high-ranking adviser to the George W. Bush 
administration, former ministers to the 
German, British and Canadian governments, 
the commander-in-chief of the Russian air 
force, 100 luminaries who signed the “9/11 
Truth Statement,” and the presidents of Iran 
and Venezuela. Not all of these people agree 
fully with each other, but all would normally be 
considered newsworthy. Why has the corporate-
owned US mass media remained silent about 
these statements, granting due coverage only to 
the comments of actor Charlie Sheen?

GEOPOLITICS, TIMING AND 
POSSIBLE MOTIVES

29) “The Great Game”
The Afghanistan invasion was ready for 

Bush’s go-ahead on September 9, 2001, with 
US and UK force deployments to the region 
already in place or underway. This followed the 
failure earlier that year of backdoor diplomacy 
with the Taliban (including payments of $125 
million in US government aid to Afghanistan), 
in an attempt to secure a unity government for 
that country as a prerequisite to a Central Asian 
pipeline deal.

30) The Need for a “New Pearl Harbor”
Principals in US foreign policy under the 

current Bush administration (including Cheney, 
Rumsfeld, Wolfowitz, Perle and others) have 
been instrumental in developing long-running 
plans for worldwide military hegemony, 
including an invasion of the Middle East, 
dating back to the Ford, Reagan and Bush Sr. 
administrations. They reiterated these plans in 
the late 1990s as members of the “Project for 
a New American Century,” and stated a clear 
intent to invade Iraq for the purpose of “regime 
change.” After 9/11, they lost no time in their 
attempt to tie Iraq to the attacks.

31) Perpetual “War on Terror”
9/11 is supposed to provide carte-blanche 

for an open-ended, global and perpetual “War 
on Terror,” against any enemy, foreign or 
domestic, that the executive branch chooses to 
designate, and regardless of whether evidence 
exists to actually connect these enemies to 
9/11.

32) Attacking the Constitution
a. The USA PATRIOT Act was written before 

9/11, Homeland Security and the “Shadow 
Government” were developed long before 9/11, 
and plans for rounding up dissidents as a means 
for suppressing civil disturbance have been in 
the works for decades.

b. 9/11 was used as the pretext to create a 
new, extra-constitutional executive authority 
to declare anyone an “enemy combatant” 
(including American citizens), to detain 
persons indefinitely without habeas corpus, 
and to “render” such persons to secret prisons 
where torture is practiced.

33) Legal Trillions
9/11 triggers a predictable shift of public 

spending to war, and boosts public and private 
spending in the “new” New Economy of 
“Homeland Security,” biometrics, universal 
surveillance, prisons, civil defense, secured 
enclaves, security, etc.

34) Plundered Trillions?
On September 10, 2001, Donald Rumsfeld 

announced a “war on waste” after an internal 
audit found that the Pentagon was “missing” 
2.3 trillion dollars in unaccounted assets. On 
September 11th, this was as good as forgotten.

35) Did 9/11 prevent a stock market 
crash?

Did anyone benefit from the destruction 
of the Securities and Exchange Commission 
offices at WTC 7, and the resultant crippling of 
hundreds of fraud investigations?

36) Resource Wars
a. What was discussed in the Energy Task 

Force meetings under Dick Cheney in 2001? 
Why is the documentation of these meetings 
still being suppressed?

b. Is Peak Oil a motive for 9/11 as inside 
job?

37) The “Little Game”
Why was the WTC privatized just before its 

destruction?

HISTORY
38) “Al-CIA-da?”
The longstanding relationship between US 

intelligence networks and radical Islamists, 
including the network surrounding Osama Bin 
Ladin. (See also point 13d.)

39) Historical Precedents for “Synthetic 
Terror”

a. In the past many states, including the US 
government, have sponsored attacks on their 
own people, fabricated the “cause for war,” 
created (and armed) their own enemies of 
convenience, and sacrificed their own citizens 
for “reasons of state.”

b. Was 9/11 an update of the Pentagon-
approved “Project Northwoods” plan for 
conducting self-inflicted, false-flag terror 
attacks in the United States, and blaming them 
on a foreign enemy?

40) Secret Government
a. The record of criminality and sponsorship 

of coups around the world by the covert 
networks based within the US intelligence 
complex.

b. Specifically also: The evidence of crime 
by Bush administration principals and their 
associates, from October Surprise to Iran-
Contra and the S&L plunder to PNAC, Enron/
Halliburton and beyond.

If you learned something new from reading 
this article, consider making a contribution to 
911truth.org during their current fundrasing 
appeal.  911truth.org is the only national 9/11 
Truth organization and by promoting the best 
9/11truth information, they provide a valuable 
service to all Americans.

Donate at the website: 911truth.org
Send donations by mail to:
911Truth.org
P.O. Box 812
Perry, KS 66073

THE TOP 40 REASONS 
TO DOUBT THE OFFICIAL STORY OF SEPTEMBER 11th, 2001
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Saakashvili also declared martial law, 
suppressing the media and rounding up 
his opponents. This is the man Obama is 
supporting.

Warmonger Obama Blames 
Russia, Mimics Bush, Cheney

“Clearly over the course of the last 24 
hours this crisis has escalated,” said Ben 
Rhodes, an Obama foreign policy aide. 
“Clearly Russia bears the responsibility 
for that escalation.” If this is the 3 AM 
phone call, Obama has failed miserably. 
Obama is running for the third term of 
the dotard warmonger Dick Cheney, 
who according to AP ‘told Georgia’s 
pro-American president that “Russian 
aggression must not go unanswered, and 
that its continuation would have serious 
consequences for its relations with the 
United States.”’

Predictably, the US controlled 
corporate media, NPR, PBS, the BBC, 
and the rest of the Anglo-American 
media cartel are attempting to cover up 
the salient fact that this war was started 
by Georgia. Georgia is unquestionably 
the aggressor, and a cowardly one at 
that. It is time to demand that not one 
soldier, not one penny, not one ship, 
not one plane be used by the US to 
support Saakashvili and his gang of 
kleptocrats and thugs. There must be 
no NATO membership for Georgia, 
nor for the similar gang of kleptocrats 
and thugs ensconced in Kiev, Ukraine, 
who have declared their full support for 
Georgia. Russian President Medvedev 
has pointed out that the Georgians have 
already killed about 2,000 Ossetians 
out of a total population of 70,000, 
and that Georgia is pursuing genocide 
and ethnic cleansing. These charges are 
well founded. In the face of imminent 
military defeat, Saakashvili will have a 
hard time holding onto power. Russia 
is unlikely to consider Georgia proper 
a privileged sanctuary for launching 
further attacks, and the Tifl is airport and 
other assets have already been bombed 
by Russia. Georgia’s entire military 
infrastructure will now be subject to 
destruction. This lesson will hopefully 
not be lost on Brzezinski’s Ukrainian 
puppets.

South Ossetia can be compared to 
West Virginia. When Virginia seceded 

from the Union in 1861, West Virginia 
soon retaliated by seceding from 
Virginia. Similarly, when Georgia left 
the USSR in 1991, South Ossetia chose 
to remain with North Ossetia, which 
has been a part of Russia since about 
1761. A second West Virginia exists in 
the form of Abkhazia, another province 
assigned by Stalin to the Georgian SSR 
which chose to stay de facto with the 
Russian Federation. Abkhazia fears a 
Georgian attack, and has declared a 
state of emergency, mobilizing its armed 
forces. Do not be surprised if Abkhazia 
pre-emptively seizes back some of its 
territory now held by Georgia.

The attack is coherent with 
Brzezinski’s desperate plan to save the 
collapsing US-UK regime of world 
domination by fi nding ways to smash 
Russia and China, the two serious 
power centers capable of checkmating 
Washington and London. As predicted, 
the epicenter of world confrontation 
is shifting rapidly away from the 
Persian Gulf. The method is classic 
Brzezinski: Zbig, working through the 
Principals’ Committee (Gates, Rice, 
Paulson, Mullen, Hadley) which rules 
Washington behind the scenes while the 
lame ducks Bush and Cheney babble off 
into the sunset, is playing his Georgia 
puppet state against Russia, leading in 
all probability to regime change and 
possible guerrilla warfare in Georgia. 
This is exactly what Brzezinski did 
with Afghanistan in 1979, leading to 
the collapse of the Soviet Union. It 
is also what Brzezinski intends to do 
with Iran. The Georgia-Ossetia war is 
already the biggest international crisis 
since 2003, with implications that go 
far beyond anything involving Iraq or 
Iran, since we are here dealing with the 
specter of superpower thermonuclear 
confrontation – a danger which is not 
immediately present in the Gulf.

The Georgia-Ossetia war risks going 
out of control, and moving the planet 
towards World War III, in several ways:

1. There are 2,000 Georgian 
soldiers serving for the US in Iraq. These 
forces have now been called home. The 
US is fl ying them back to Georgia in 
US military aircraft, a very unfriendly 
act towards Russia, since these troops 
will soon be fi ghting the Russians 
under present circumstances. What if 

Russia decided to shoot down these US 
planes? That would bring World War III 
much too close for comfort. NBS News 
reports that the State Department is 
talking to the Russian Foreign Ministry 
to avoid just such a highly dangerous 
mid-air confrontation. American 
national interest demands that these 
Georgians be told to get home on their 
own power, without the US Air Force.

2. The Russian navy is now 
blockading the Black Sea coast of 
Georgia. What if the US or other NATO 
states now decide to send ships carrying 
humanitarian or military aid to Georgia? 
A large NATO fl eet buildup in the 
eastern Mediterranean is reported. What 
if the US, the British, or the French 
try to break through the Russian naval 
blockade? If shooting starts, World War 
III could loom very quickly.

3. The NATO puppet regime 
in Ukraine controls the bases for the 
Russian Black Sea fl eet. These NATO 
provocateurs in Kiev are now saying 
that, since the Russian Black Sea fl eet 
has left those ports to blockade Georgia, 
they will not be allowed to re-enter their 
Ukrainian home ports. If shooting starts, 
this could be a wider war. If the NATO 
Tusk regime in Poland, yet another 
gaggle of Brzezinski puppets, decides 
to come in on the side of the Ukrainians, 
then Warsaw could invoke the NATO 
alliance, and the US could soon be at 
war with Russia.

4. Ukraine could also decide to 
support Georgia with ground troops. 
If the Ukrainians get into trouble, they 
will call on the Poles, and the Poles will 
call on NATO, also threatening to drag 
the US into a real war of catastrophic 
proportions.

Letting Poland join NATO was 
supreme folly. We are fortunate that 
Georgia and Ukraine are not NATO 
members already. American national 
interest demands good relations with 
Russia. The United States must not be 
carried towards World War III as the tail 
of the Brzezinski-Obama kite. There 
must be no support for Saakashvili and 
his gang.

Webster G. Tarpley is an author and political 
historian based in Washington, DC. His most 
recent book is: Obama - The Postmodern 
Coup: Making of a Manchurian Candidate.

Brzezinski’s Georgia Puppets Attack Russia – 
World War Three In Sight

held a SECRET clearance.  
The fact that McVeigh was indeed 

accepted into Special Forces and 
went on to work for the government 
during the time leading up to the 
bombing is supported not only by 
his previous employers and military 
records, but by the claims of Terry 
Nichols, convicted co-conspirator, 
McVeigh’s younger sister, and 
claims of McVeigh himself. Nichols, 
in 2006, stated that in November 
1992 McVeigh told him he had 
been recruited by the Army for an 
undercover mission. This is also the 
exact time, according to other defense 
records, that McVeigh was suddenly 
able to pay off all of his credit card 
bills after he had accumulated an 
enormous debt while gambling on 
the Buffalo Bills. McVeigh also 
advised his defense team that he had 
been issued a DoD  credit card in the 
years prior to the bombing.

 Another memo dated December 
of 1995, states that McVeigh, 
who joined the National Guard in 
Upstate New York, after his return 
from the Gulf War and alleged 
Special Forces “fl unk out,” became 
highly agitated and upset when his 
defense confronted him with some 
disturbing information.  When 
McVeigh was asked by his lawyers 
what exactly his job had been while 
in the National Guard, McVeigh, 
the model solider, stated he did not 
remember, something which would 
have been highly uncharacteristic 
of him. His lawyers then confronted 
and questioned him as to why he 
told his fi rst lawyer, immediately 
after the bombing, that he had been 
“operating within the confi nes of the 
United States Government” when 
he bombed the Murrah building. 
McVeigh had confi ded to his fi rst 
lawyer that he had been recruited 
by the government while serving 
in the National Guard and that his 
job was to “search for neo-Nazis 
and other problem troops within the 
Guard,” which further corroborate 
D’s claims. 

Additionally, he told his original 
council that he was only supposed 
to blow out a few windows of the 
federal building but that the truck 
had been switched possibly without 
his knowledge.”  After confronting 
McVeigh about this, his council 
noted that he became highly angry, 
and stated that he thought he had told 
the previous lawyer this information 
in confi dentiality.

That the damage to the Murrah 
building was much more severe 
than could be expected from the 
Lone Ryder truck bomb, is not 
only supported by his fi rst defense 
attorney, but also by the mysterious 
source D himself, who says that 
McVeigh’s government handler 
instructed McVeigh on the morning 
of the bombing, to park the Ryder 

truck in front of the Murrah building 
and then meet him at a nearby 
restaurant. However, D says, things 
did not go according to plan, and at 
9:02am on the morning of April 19, 
1995, the Ryder truck, which was 
fi lled with ammonium nitrate and 
a large amount of C-4, detonated. 
Immediately afterwards, D claims, 
“strategically placed charges” 
blew out the four main building 
supports. D’s statement also aligns 
with original media accounts, fi rst 
responder transcripts, seismographs 
and expert witnesses who believe the 
destruction done to the building was 
caused by much more than a “Lone 
Ryder.”

Furthermore, D also claimed he 
was “convinced that the Oklahoma 
City bombing had international 
connections which included Great 
Britain and Germany, and that 
there seemed to be no doubt that 
Timothy McVeigh was used simply 
as a tool by the actual perpetrators 
to carry out this mission.” That 
other countries could have been 
involved is also evidenced by the 
involvement of another major player 
in the saga of the bombing, German 
born Andreas Strassmeir, member 
of the elite GS9 German Counter 
Terrorism unit. “Andy the German,” 
as he was known around gun show 
circuits in the 1990s, had been part 
of a joint US-German operation to 
infi ltrate and track the sources of 
banned white power literature within 
Germany which was thought to 
originate in the United States. “Andy 
the German” fi rst appeared within the 
United States in the summer of 1989 
when he was seen at a KKK rally in 
Texas. He then went on to act as head 
of security at a separatist compound 
in Oklahoma called Elohim City 
where he also provided paramilitary 
training. Strassmeir, although having 
been seen with McVeigh by an ATF 
informant at Elohim City, was also 
close associates of another man, 
Dennis Mahon, head of the Oklahoma 
KKK, and was being watched by 
the ATF and FBI for plans to blow 
up federal buildings. Strassmeir 
was allowed to return to Germany 
without being questioned by the FBI 
concerning his knowledge of the 

plot.  Mahon, it seems, who admitted 
to knowing McVeigh, was never 
questioned. The fact that Strassmeir 
appeared in the US in the summer of 
1989 is intriguing given that this was 
the same time that McVeigh returned 
from Germany after being involved 
in a “Change Up Program” with the 
German military, during his “active” 
duty in the military.  

D then says that certain watchdog 
agencies, who had been tracking 
McVeigh for months before the 
bombing, had achieved their 
objective because the militias and 
skinheads were blaming the Feds 
and vise versa, and that in the midst 
of this confusion, President Bill 
Clinton was then able to pass his 
new Anti-Terrorism bill, which had 
been continuously shot down prior 
to the bombing. This bill, when read 
carefully, looks like a close relative 
of current post 9/11 legislation, 
including widely expanded and 
unprecedented domestic spying 
capabilities and the erosion of 
habeas corpus.  Perhaps D is correct. 
Regardless, the fact that there is 
now much evidence to show that 
McVeigh’s role was much more 
obscure and intentionally hidden than 
previously thought. This should be a 
concern of students of history  as well 
as those who support such needless 
legislation, such as the current H.R. 
1955: Violent Radicalization and 
Homegrown Terrorism Prevention 
Act of 2007.  That bill, which has 
been described by many as a “thought 
crime” bill, is justifi ed out of fear 
for the next Lone Nut Domestic 
Terrorist. Americans, who live in a 
strange culture of  consumerism and 
fear, are told continuously that they 
must be very fearful and vigilant 
against all kinds of terrors, including 
body odor, sexual impotence, road 
rage, bird fl u, human fl u, ADD and 
terrorists, often thoughtlessly accept 
the remedies being sold, Remedies, 
which when examined closely, are 
not best for we the people.

Wendy S. Painting lives in Rochester, New 
York. She has a Masters in Humanities, 
from the State University of New York 
at Buffalo and she is currently writing 
a book on the Oklahoma City Bombing.

A Guilty Agent: 
The Shadowy Role of Timothy McVeigh

On the left, McVeigh in Waco in 1993. On the right, an alleged McVeigh from recently surfaced 
video at Camp Grafton, North Dakota fi lmed in August 1993-- well after McVeigh was honorably 
discharged from service in May 1992.  Was McVeigh being secretly trained, as he told his sister, to be 
a paid government assassin? - JonesReport.com
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